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Satin Finserv Limited

Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors takes immense pleasure in presenting the 7t Board’s Report of Satin Finserv
Limited (“SFL” or “Company”), along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended

March 31, 2025.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(In INR Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total revenue 12,661.71 12,140.51
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit before Tax 1,058.30 703.52
Less: Tax Expenses 313.02 188.75
Profit after Tax 745.28 514.77
Add: Other comprehensive income 0.41 (3.24)
Total comprehensive income 745.69 511.53
Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) 0.47 0.36

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Operational Highlights

The Company offers small ticket business Loans to business owners in manufacturing, trading and services
providers posting a low annual turnover or a segment predominantly excluded from mainstream access
to organized finance.

During FY 2024-25, the loan portfolio of SFL has grown with an increase in geographic expansion
maintaining stable net profit margins. Investments in technology and better credit assessments
have enhanced operational efficiency and customer experience.

As on March 31, 2025, SFL had 47 branches of SME lending across 11 states. The Company plans
to continue its growth journey by opening more branches and further investing in technology to
optimize operating costs and improve collection efficiency.

During the year under review, the Company reported a profit after tax of INR 745.28 Lakhs as
compared to INR 514.77 Lakhs for the previous year, resulting in an increase of 44.77% in profit.
This increase can be attributed to a 4.29 % increase in total revenue, which rose from INR 12,140.51
Lakhs to INR 12,661.71 Lakhs, coupled with increase in total expenses by 1.46%, which grew from
INR 11,436.99 Lakhs to INR 11,603.41 Lakhs.

During the period under review, your Company has disbursed loans of INR 34,789.53 Lakhs in
SME Business and thereby, achieved AUM of INR 51,631.84 Lakhs (on book) and INR 3,135.71
Lakhs (off book).

During the period under review, your Company’s net worth stood at INR 18,255.74 Lakhs as on
March 31, 2025. This is SFL’s Seventh year of operations, and we have been profitable in all years,
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except FY 2018-19 i.e. the year of Incorporation. SFL has reported total income of INR 12,661.71
Lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025, and Profit before tax stood at INR 1,058.30 Lakhs.
Capital to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) is 37.62% which is well above the regulatory requirement of

¢ During the seventh year of operations, SFL has shown decent growth in terms of sanctions &
disbursements of loans with retail disbursements having grown by 51% from FY 23-24 in SME

Business.

Particulars

Number of Branches
Number of Active Borrowers

Own*

Managed™*

Gross Loan Portfolio (in Lakhs)
e Ouwn*
e  Managed**

Number of Employees

Total Disbursement (in Lakhs)
e Quwn*

e Managed**

Year ended March 31, 2025

70
66,301

38,171
28,130
54,767.55
51,631.84
3,135.71
1,022
34,789.53
34,789.53

*Own- SME Business **Managed- JLG Business Correspondent (BC)

Year ended March 31, 2024

119
1,21,293

21,123
1,00,170
50,100.77
32,637.32
17,463.44
1,181
40,177.46
21,943.16
18,234.30

***The Decrease in the amount pertaining to JLG Business is due to the Company’s strategy to run down

the BC operations of the JLG Business.

Credit Rating

The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was as follows:

Rating Agency Facilities/Instruments Amount Rating Rating
(INR Action
Lakhs)
ICRA Limited  Long-term fund-based bank 8000 [ICRA]JA-(Stable) Reaffirmed
facilities
NCD Programme 12000 [ICRA]JA-(Stable) Reaffirmed
Fund Raise

(a) Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) and Debenture Trustee:-

During the year under review, the Company had allotted the following debentures

1. 2500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable Non-
Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/ - (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One) investor
on June 28, 2024 on private placement basis ;
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2.1,999 (One Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable
Non-Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One)
investor on August 30, 2024 on private placement basis ; and

3. 2500 (Two Thousand Five Hundred) Senior, Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Taxable Non-
Convertible Debentures at a face value of INR 1,00,000/ - (Indian Rupees One Lakh only) to 1 (One) investor
on September 20, 2024 on private placement basis.

The Company had appointed Axis Trustee Services Limited, having Corporate Office at The Ruby, 2nd
Floor, SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar West, Mumbai-400028, as the Debenture Trustee for the Non-
Convertible Debentures issued by the Company. The Company has duly submitted the required
documents and intimations to the Debenture Trustee as per agreed covenants and made timely payments.

(b) Bank Finance

As on March 31, 2025, borrowings from banks were INR 2,723.41 Lakhs as against INR 3,271.44 Lakhs as
on March 31, 2024. The borrowings other than banks as on March 31, 2025 were INR 40,898.40 Lakhs as
against INR 22,039.10 Lakhs as on March 31, 2024.

Scheme of Amalgamation

The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench vide its order dated January 31, 2023
had approved the Scheme of Arrangement for Amalgamation of Taraashna Financial Services Limited with
SFL and after requisite filing with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, the said Scheme got
effective from March 1, 2023. The Appointed Date of Scheme was April 1, 2021.

Prospects & Outlook

SFL, having impressively crossed INR 500 crore on-Book AUM milestone, is charting an ambitious growth
trajectory in India’s rapidly expanding SME lending landscape. As the country’s entrepreneurial base
broadens and small businesses increasingly seek formal credit, SFL is uniquely poised to become a key
enabler of this transformation. Backed by strong macroeconomic fundamentals, supportive government
initiatives and a shift toward formalization of the MSME sector, the demand for agile and inclusive lending
is at an all-time high.

Company’s focused strategy centred around leveraging advanced technology and deep customer insights
is designed to unlock the full potential of this market. By embracing alternative data, predictive analytics
and introduction of automated loan processing, the company will be able to cater to new-to-credit
borrowers and underserved regions with speed and precision.

Furthermore, SFL is gearing up to roll out specialized loan products, with a strong governance framework,
prudent risk management and a customer-first philosophy. SFL is evolving into a next-generation NBFC
with the capacity to shape the future of SME financing in India.

Looking ahead, the company has the potential to more than double its AUM in the next 2-3 years expand
into new geographies, and emerge as a nationally recognized, tech-enabled financial powerhouse. SFL is
no longer just a participant in the lending ecosystem, it is positioning itself as a transformative force driving
financial inclusion, economic empowerment, and entrepreneurial growth at scale.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

e Authorized Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Authorized Share Capital of your Company stood at INR 1,58,00,00,000/ -
(Rupees One Hundred Fifty-Eight Crores) divided into 15,80,00,000 (Fifteen Crores Eighty Lakhs) Equity
Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

e  Issued Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Issued Share Capital of the Company stood at INR 1,57,55,78,920 (Rupees One
Hundred Fifty-Seven Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs Seventy-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty)
divided into 15,75,57,892 (Fifteen Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Fifty-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and
Ninety-Two) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

e Paid-up Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stood at INR 1,57,55,78,920 (Rupees One
Hundred Fifty-Seven Crores Fifty-Five Lakhs Seventy-Eight Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty)
divided into 15,75,57,892 (Fifteen Crores Seventy-Five Lakhs Fifty-Seven Thousand Eight Hundred and
Ninety-Two) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of Business of the Company during the year ended on March 31, 2025.
DIVIDEND

To grow the business of the Company and enhance the rate of return on investment of the Members, it is
necessary to conserve the resources. The Directors are of the opinion to retain the profits for the year within
the Company and thus have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares for the year ended March
31, 2025.

RESERVE AND SURPLUS

An amount of INR 149.06 Lakhs, being 20% of the Profit After Tax (PAT) was transferred to Statutory
Reserve of the Company during the year pursuant to Section 45 IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Closing balance of said reserve stood at INR 561.80 Lakhs as on March 31, 2025. Further, the closing balance
of the retained earnings of the Company for FY 2024-25, after all appropriation and adjustments was INR
(313.78) Lakhs as compared to INR (910.41) Lakhs in FY 2023-24.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted/received any deposit during the year under review falling within the
ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

Your Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as a Non-Deposit accepting NBFC under
Section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934. Your Board of Directors hereby reports that the Company has not
accepted any public deposits during the year under review and it continues to be a non-deposit taking
non-banking financial company in conformity with the guidelines of the RBI. As such no amount of
principal and interest was outstanding during the year.
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, INVESTMENT OR GUARANTEE

During the year under review, in terms of the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”), the Company did not make any investments through more than two layers of investment
Companies.

Since the Company is Non-Banking Financial Company, the disclosures regarding the particulars of the
loans and guarantees given and security provided is exempt under the provisions of Section 186(11) of the
Act, read with rules made thereunder, as amended. Further, the details of investments made by the
Company are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

DETAILS OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Your Company has aligned its current system of internal financial control with the requirement of the Act.
The Company continues to monitor the efficiency of internal controls through a comprehensive internal
control framework which has been designed to ensure transparency and accountability in the
organisation’s process of designing and implementing a system of internal control. Through this
framework risks in the company are identified, analysed and appropriate responses are managed.
Moreover, the Audit Committee reviews the audit reports submitted by internal auditors and statutory
auditors of the Company. Statutory Auditors review the Internal Financial Controls and inform the same
in their report. Other Committees i.e. Nomianation and Remuneration Committee (NRC), Asset Liablity
Management Committee (ALMC), Risk Management Committee (RMC) and Information Technology
Strategy Committee (ITSC) (Full form of the name of Committees) review the required matters on frequent
basis and ensure proper system and processes.

The Company’s internal controls systems are commensurate with its size and the nature of its operations.
These have been designed as well as operating effectively to provide a reasonable assurance with regard
to recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorised use, executing transactions with proper authorisation,
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and
timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures and ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

Also, an audit on internal systems, processes and controls as required under RBI Master Direction on
Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices was conducted by
CyberCube Services Private Limited. Further, as per the said audit report, all of the controls required for
the NBFC Sector are implemented by the Company. This indicates your Company has an integrated and
robust Information Security Management System in its processes and information security.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

There were no material changes and commitments or events recorded after the closure of financial year
March 31, 2025 till the date of signing of Board’s Report.

HOLDING, SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Satin Creditcare Network Limited. Your Company does
not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company within the meaning of clause (6) Section 2
of the Companies Act, 2013 at any time during the year ended March 31, 2025
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANEGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP)

e Directors

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors comprises of 4 (Four) Directors, consisting of 3 (Three)
Independent directors, 1 (One) Non-executive Director. The details are as follows:

S. No. Name of Director(s) Category of Director(s)

1. Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh Non-executive, Non -Independent
Director

2. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra Independent Director

3. Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta Independent Director

4. Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia Independent Director

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f.
January 16, 2025. The Board place on record, its appreciation for the valuable contribution of Mr. Bhuvnesh
Khanna in the sustained growth of the Company during his tenure.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall have at least one-
Woman Director on the Board. Your Company has Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia, as Woman Director on the Board.

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Act and other applicable laws.

e Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Dr. Harvinder
Pal Singh (DIN: 00333754), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment at ensuing Annual General Meeting. Your Board of Directors recommends his
re-appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation.

The appointment of Directors and Senior Management are as per recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Company, Fit and proper criteria of Company’s policy and applicable RBI

guidelines.

e Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

As on March 31, 2025, there were 3 KMP’s in the Company The details are as follows:

S. No. Name of the KMP Designation of the KMP

1. Mr. Dhiraj Jha Chief Executive Officer
(appointed w.e.f January 17, 2025)

2. Mr. Arjun Bansal Chief Financial Officer

3. Ms. Sangam Jaiswal Company Secretary & Chief
(appointed w.e.f January 17, 2025) Compliance Officer

e Statement on declaration "Certificate of Independence" u/s 149 (6) from Independent Directors
and declaration and undertaking as per applicable RBI guidelines

Pursuant to Section 149(6) read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
includes Independent Directors, ensuring an appropriate balance of skills, experience, and knowledge.
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This enables the Board to discharge its functions and duties effectively. The Company has a Board-
approved Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) in accordance with applicable RBI guidelines
and the Companies Act, 2013, ensuring that appointed directors are fit, qualified, and periodically
evaluated. During the year under review, the Company received Declarations of Independence from all
the Independent Directors, in compliance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, as well as
declarations and undertakings from each director on fit and proper criteria as per provisions of the Master
Directions - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions,
2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended time to time.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors, along with the Committees of the Board, provides leadership and guidance to the
Company’s Management and direct, supervise and control the activities of the Company.

The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the year under review. The meetings were held on the following
dates April 22, 2024, July 24, 2024, September 9, 2024, October 25, 2024, January 16, 2025, January 31, 2025,
and March 20, 2025.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD COMMITTEES AND DIRECTORS

Performance appraisal framework was formulated and adopted by the Board. Pursuant to the provisions
of Sec 134(3)(p) read with Sec 178 of the Act, a formal evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
committees (mandatory under Secretarial Standard-1), Individual Directors was carried out for FY 2024-
25, using questionnaire covering, amongst others, composition of board, effective decision making, advice
and necessary guidance, open communication, meaningful participation, knowledge & expertise of
Directors, contribution at Board meetings etc. Further, Individual Directors were evaluated in terms of
participation in the meetings of Board and Committees, Education & Qualification, effective examination
of the financial and other information related to operations of the Company, raising of valid concerns,
impartial & meaningful participation and adequate deliberations in the meeting. The actions emerging
from the Board evaluation process were collated and on consolidated basis, the summary of the ratings
was prepared, and the report of performance evaluation so arrived at, was circulated to Independent
Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board along with ratings.

The Independent Directors in their meeting held on March 20, 2025 has reviewed and forwarded to the
Board the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole of the Company taking into
account the views of Directors of the Company for the FY 2024-25 and reviewed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board as required under the
provisions of the Act, and rules/schedule made thereunder. The Board found the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board “satisfactory” for FY
2024-25.

The NRC has evaluated the performance of Independent and Non-Independent Directors in its meeting
dated March 20, 2025, for the FY 2024-25 and forwarded the same for Board’s consideration.

Thereafter, the evaluation qualitative comments and suggestions of Independent Directors and NRC was
circulated to the Board and Board of Directors in it’s meeting held on March 20, 2025, inter-alia has
evaluated the performance of Board, Committees (mandatory under Secretarial Standard -1) and
Individuals Directors of the Company for the FY 2024-25 as required under applicable laws. The Board
found the overall performance “satisfactory” for FY 2024-25.

In compliance with Schedule IV of the Act, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on March
20, 2025 inter alia, for the following:




=r1

Satin Finserv Limited

1. To review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

2. To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

All Independent Directors, i.e. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra, Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta and Ms. Jyoti Ahluwalia
were present at the meeting. The Independent Directors present at the meeting deliberated on the above
were satisfied with the performance of the non-independent director and the Board as a whole.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has complied with the applicable and mandatory
Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

1. That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departure.

2. That they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as on March 31, 2025, and of the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date.

3. That they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4. That they have prepared the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2025, on a going concern
basis;

5. That they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively during the financial year ended
March 31, 2025;

6. That they have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively during the financial year ended March 31,
2025.

INFORMATION ON MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNAL

During the period under review, no significant or material order was passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals affecting the going concern status of the Company and its operations in future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there is no materially significant related party transaction with the
Company’s promoters, directors, the management, their subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The necessary disclosures regarding the related party
transactions are given in the notes to accounts. In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has
formulated the RPT Policy.
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All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for approval as per the Related Party
Transactions Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. Further, details of all transactions with
related parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements of the Company. Particulars of
Contracts or Arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) is given in Form AOC- 2 as
“Annexure - 1”.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORTS

Statutory Auditors and their report

At the Company’s 6t Annual General Meeting held on August 8, 2024, M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 021776N), Delhi, were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the term of five (5) consecutive years up to the conclusion of Eleventh Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Further, as per the provisions of Section 139 and Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, eligibility letters
have been received from Statutory Auditors M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Registration No. 021776N) for the financial year 2025-26 and on recommendation of Audit
Committee of the Company, the Board has reviewed and monitored their independence, performance and
effectiveness of audit process as per the applicable laws.

The Auditors” Reports for the financial year 2024-25 do not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse
remark or disclaimer. The notes regarding the Accounts referred to in the Auditors” Report are self-
explanatory and do not call for further comments. The Board has placed on record its appreciation for the
services rendered by M/s. Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as a Statutory Auditor of
the Company.

Secretarial Auditors and their report

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on April 22, 2023, based on recommendation of Audit
Committee of the Company, had appointed M/s S. Behera & Co., Company Secretaries (ICSI PCS
Registration No. 5980), as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2024-25 for conducting the audit of
the secretarial and related records of the Company. The Company provided all the assistance and the
facilities to the Secretarial Auditor for conducting the Secretarial Audit. The secretarial audit report is
annexed to this Board’s Report as “ Annexure II”. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark
made in the Secretarial Audit Report.

The Board has placed on record its appreciation for the services rendered by M/s. S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries, as a Secretarial Auditor of the Company.

In view of the requirements, M/s DPV & Associates LLP, Practicing Company Secretaries (FRN:
L2021HR009500) were appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company in the Board Meeting held on
April 25, 2025 for the financial year 2025-26. M/s DPV & Associates LLP a peer-reviewed firm having
Certificate No. 6189/2024, valid until October 31, 2029.

Cost Records and Cost Audit

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of Cost Audit as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable for the business activities carried
out by the Company.
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Reporting of Fraud by Auditors

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditor nor the secretarial auditor have reported to the
Audit Committee or to the Board, under section 143(12) of the Act, any instance of the fraud committed in
the Company, the details of which need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of RBI
guidelines. The Committee comprises of 3 (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors.

The Audit Committee, in compliance with recent RBI amendments, ensures that Information System
Audits of the Internal Controls are conducted to assess the operational risks faced by the NBFCs.
Additionally, The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting process and reviews, with the
Management, the financial statements to ensure that the same are correct and credible. The Audit
Committee has the ultimate authority and responsibility to select and evaluate the Independent Auditors
in accordance with the law. The Audit Committee also reviews performance of the Statutory Auditors, the
Internal Auditors, adequacy of the internal control system.

During the year under review, all the recommendation of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Composition of the Audit Committee and its terms of reference and the
details of meetings attended by the Audit Committee members are provided in Corporate Governance
Report which forms an integral part of this Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to integrity and transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on
business ethics. The Board of your Company exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the widest sense of
term and endeavors to enhance long-term shareholder value. The Governance framework is anchored by
the clearly defined policies and procedures covering areas such Anti- Bribery and Anti-Corruption,
Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace and Whistle Blower Policy.

A Corporate Governance Report as required under Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company-Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023, as amended, forms
an integral part of this report.

POLICIES
1. Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Sustainability and Social Responsibility are an integral element of the Corporate Strategy of the Company.
The Company has in place the Board approved Corporate Social Responsibility Policy in line with the
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, as amended from to
time. The CSR policy is available on the website of the Company at https:/ /satinfinserv.com/practice-

policies/

However, as exempted under Section 135(9) of the Act, the Company was not required to constitute the
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee for the year ended March 31, 2025.

The Company strongly believes that sustainable community development is essential for harmony
between the community and the industry. Sustainability and social responsibility are an integral part of
the corporate strategy of the Company. The Board oversees the implementation of CSR Policy of the
Company. However, during the year under review, the Company was not required to make any
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contribution towards the CSR due to negative figures of average net profit of the Company during the
three immediately preceding financial year.

2. Risk Management Policy

Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. The risk management process is
adopted and reviewed by the Board of Directors of the Company on a regular basis which provides for
identification, assessment and control of risks. Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors
regularly review compliance with risk policies, monitor risk tolerance limits, review and analyses risk
exposure related to specific issues and provides oversight of risk across the organization.

The risk management framework covers integrated risk management, mainly comprising Credit Risk,
Market Risk, Operational Risk, Fraud Risk and other risks. The Credit Risk management structure includes
documented credit policies and procedures for each financial product and service of the business.

Risks associated with fraud are mitigated through the Board approved Fraud Risk Management Policy.
Fraud risk is monitored through oversight by senior management, who review matters relating to fraud
risk, including corrective and remedial actions with regard to people and processes.

3. Sexual Harassment Policy for Women under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your Company is committed to ensure fair environment for its executive, staff and workers. In compliance
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,
("POSH ACT”) the Company has adopted Sexual Harassment Policy approved vide Board of Directors
which ensure free and fair enquiry process with clear timelines. The Company has duly constituted
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) as required under the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to review the cases related to sexual harassment. Your
directors further states that during the year under review, there was no case reported pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment to women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Also, in
order to comply with applicable laws, the annual return as required under POSH Act for calendar year
ended December 31, 2024, was filed with concerned authorities within the prescribed timelines.

The details of complaints relating to sexual harassment for the financial year are as follows:

¢ Number of complaints of sexual harassment received during the year: Nil
e Number of complaints disposed off during the year: Nil
¢ Number of cases pending for more than ninety days: Nil

The Company maintains a zero-tolerance policy towards sexual harassment and ensures a safe and secure
working environment for all employees, particularly women.

4. Maternity Benefit Act 1961

The Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All eligible
women employees have been granted maternity benefits as per the entitlements under the act. The
Company remains committed to supporting and protecting the rights and well-being of women
employees.

5. Policy on Nomination & Remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) & Senior
Management and Other Employees
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In pursuance of the Company’s policy to consider human resources as its invaluable assets, to pay
equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other
employees of the Company, to have diversified Board, to harmonize the aspirations of human resources
consistent with the goals of the Company and in terms of Section 178 of the Act, as amended from time to
time and Rules/Regulations/Guidelines/Notifications issued by RBI and SEBI from time to time. Your
Company has in place a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which is also available at
https:/ /satinfinserv.com/ practice-policies/

6. Whistle Blower Policy

Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud, unethical behavior and
mismanagement, if any. Whistle Blower Policy ensures that the activities of the Company and its
employees are conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of the highest standards of
professionalism. The Whistle Blower Policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of people
and ensures that any employee, officer and director who violates the requirements of this policy will be
subject to disciplinary action. The Audit Committee reviews the functioning and complaint received under
Whistle Blower Policy, if any, on a quarterly basis. During the period under review, the Company has not
received any complaint under the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism.

7. Other Statutory Policies

The Company has all statutory policies as required under applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and applicable under SEBI, RBI guidelines.

FAIR PRACTICE CODE

Your Company has adhered to Board approved Fair Practice Code in terms of applicable RBI guidelines.
The Board approved Fair Practice Code covers the required disclosures and norms as required under
applicable RBI guidelines/directions. The Board periodically reviews the Fair Practice Code and its
functioning. The Board approved Fair Practice Code is disclosed on the website of the Company at
https:/ /satinfinserv.com/practice-policies/ Also, Fair Practice Code are being displayed at branches,
regional offices and where business is transacted.

CUSTOMER GRIEVANCE

The Company has a dedicated Customer Grievance team for receiving and handling customer
complaints/grievances and to ensure that the customers are always treated in a fair and unbiased manner.
All grievances raised by the customers are dealt with courtesy and redressed expeditiously.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) read with Rule
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable over the Company.

However, there are no employee drawing remuneration in excess of limits as laid down under rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014. The form and
amount of director’s remuneration was recommended by the NRC to the Board for approval within the
maximum amount permissible under the law. Employee directors will not be paid for Board Membership
(sitting fees) addition to their regular employee compensation. The NRC will conduct a review of director
compensation on periodic basis to ensure directors of the company are compensated effectively in a
manner consistent with the strategy of the Company, and to further ensure that the Company will be able
to attract, retain and reward those who contribute to the success of the Company.
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LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

The Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement basis are listed on Wholesale Debt Market
Segment of Bombay Stock Exchange.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time
to time, the Annual Return for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s
website on https:/ /satinfinserv.com/annual-returns/

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

Being into the business related to financial services, provisions pertaining to conservation of energy are
not applicable. Further, there are no foreign exchange earnings(s) or outgo during the financial year 2024-
25. Further, pursuant to of the Act, read with sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, the information is as follows:

Sr. Particulars Details
No
A) Conservation of energy Not applicable, in view

of the nature of the
business of the
Company being
Financial Services.

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy.

ii. the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate
sources of energy.

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation

equipment.

B) Technology absorption The Company is steadily
i. The efforts made towards technology absorption; ii. applying and adopting
benefits derived from like product improvement, cost technology to improve
reduction, product development or import substitution. services efficiently, and
iii. In the case of imported technology (imported during the Company has not
the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the imported any
financial year)- technology.

a. the details of technology imported;
b. the year of import;
c. whether the technology been fully absorbed;
d. if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not
taken place, and the reasons thereof; and
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development.
Q) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo Nil

MANAGEMNENT AND DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In accordance with the provisions of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non- Banking Financial
Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated October 19, 2023. The Management and
Discussion and Analysis Report forms an integral part of this report.
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RBI NORMS AND STANDARDS

The Company complies with the regulatory requirement of Net Owned Funds (NOF) as defined under
Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, read with Regulation 6 of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 to carry/continue its business as a
Middle Layer category NBFC.

The Company has complied with and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations and
guidelines issued by RBI such as Capital Adequacy, Net Owned Funds, provisioning for Non-Performing
Assets and for Standard Assets, Concentration of Credit and Investment, filings, etc. Please refer to Note
no. 45 Notes to balance sheet for Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (“CRAR”) of the Company. In line with the
RBI guidelines for Asset Liability Management (ALM) system for NBFCs, the Company has an Asset
Liability Management Committee which meets periodically to review its ALM risks and opportunities.
The Company is also in compliance with the Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and other guidelines/circulars/directions
as issued by RBI from time to time.

DISCLOSURES UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Your Company has neither filed any application nor any proceedings pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the reporting year, hence no disclosure is required under this section.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

The Company has not entered into a one-time settlement of any loan obtained from Banks or financial
institutions. Therefore, the details regarding the difference between the amount of the valuation done at
the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loans from the banks or financial
institutions.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors would like to place on record their gratitude for the cooperation received from lenders, our
valued customers and Members. The Board, in specific, wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation
of the contribution made by all the employees towards growth of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00333754 DIN: 00840544

Director Director

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Gurugram
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions

under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship:
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions:
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions:

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board:
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general Meeting as required under first proviso to section

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

188:

S. Name(s) of the Nature of

No. related party contracts/
and nature of arrangements
relationship /transactions

1. Satin To avail the
Creditcare Business
Network Correspondence
Limited Services from
(Holding SCNL
Company)

2. Mr. Varun Appointment of
Shankardass Mr. Varun
(Daughter’s Shankardass as
Husband of Mr. Deputy Vice
Harvinder Pal President -
Singh, Non- Product Strategy
Executive and New
Director) Initiatives in the

Company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Sd/-

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh
DIN: 00333754

Director

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Gurugram

Duration of Salient terms of the Date(s) of Amount
the contracts  contracts or arrangements or approval  paid as
/ transactions including the by the advances,
arrangements value, if any Board, if  if any
/transactions any

3 (Three)  SCNL would refer its July 24, NIL

years from  existing customers to SFL 2024

effective who are interested in seeking

date high-ticket loans, for which

(August 1,  SCNL should charge a fee

2024) and  based on cost, profit-margin

may be  with certain assumptions i.e.

further INR 420/- (Indian Rupees

extended Four Hundred Twenty Only)

as plus applicable taxes for per

mutually successful case (‘Referral

decided in Fee’), on the terms and

writing conditions mentioned in the

agreement
N.A. N.A. September NIL
9,2024
Sd/-

Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00840544
Director
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Annexure-2
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2025 (Form No. MR-3)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of

Satin Finserv Limited

(CIN: U65999HR2018PL.C099128)

4th Floor, B Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to corporate practices by SATIN FINSERV LIMITED (hereinafter called the company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and made
available and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, in our
opinion we hereby report that, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on March 31, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions stated hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. = The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder-

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings- Not applicable during the Financial Year under review;

v.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable:

a)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;

c¢)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;

d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2021- Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review;
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e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021-
Not Applicable during the Financial Year under review; and

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018- Not
Applicable during the Financial Year under Review;

vi.  The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to
the Company:

1. Rules, Regulations and Guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India as are applicable to
NBFCs-NDSI ICC which are specifically applicable to the Company.
2. Local laws as applicable to all its branches and offices.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses/ Regulations of the following;:

() Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (‘S5-1") and General
Meetings (‘SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and
(if) the Listing Agreements entered by the Company with BSE Limited.

We report that, during the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Acts, Rules, Regulations, and Guidelines mentioned above.

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company
and also on the review of the compliances report of Company Secretary/Chief Financial Officer/Whole
Time Director and Chief Executive Officer and respective departmental heads taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meetings and based on the review of the compliance mechanism
established by the Company, we are of the opinion that, adequate system and process exist in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Director and Independent Directors. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

e Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except where consent of
directors were received for circulation of the agenda and notes on agenda at a shorter notice and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

e All decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with requisite majority.
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We further report that the Company is in compliance with Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 with respect to Structured Digital Database.

We further report that during the audit period the following specific events/actions have taken place in

pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above which

may have a major bearing on the company’s affairs:

The Working Committee of the Board of Directors vide their meetings held on June 28, 2024,
August 30, 2024 and September 20, 2024, approved the allotment of 2500, 1999 and 2500 senior,
secured, rated, listed, redeemable, taxable non-convertible debentures having a face value of INR
1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakh) each and an aggregate face value of INR 25,00,00,000 (Rupees Twenty
Five Crores), 19,99,00,000 (Rupees Nineteen Crores Ninety Nine Lakhs) and 25,00,00,000 ((Rupees
Twenty Five Crores) respectively on a private placement basis;

The members vide their AGM held on August 08, 2024 approved the appointment of M/s Rajeev
Bhatia and Associates, Chartered Accountant as Statutory Auditors for the term of 5 (five) years;
The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on October 25, 2024, noted the resignation of Mr.
Gurvinder Singh as Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer (KMP) w.e.f. September 11,
2024

The members vide their EOGM held on October 28, 2024 approved the appointment of Mr. Varun
Shankardass (Related Party) to hold office or place of profit in the Company;

The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on January 16, 2025, approved the appointment of
Mr. Dhiraj Jha as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company w.e.f. January 17,2025, upon the
resignation of Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna as Whole-time Director & CEO of the Company w.e.f. January
16, 2025;

The Board of Directors vide their meeting held on January 16, 2025, approved the appointment of
Ms. Sangam Jaiswal as Whole-time Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer of the

Company.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral

part of this report.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor

CP No. 5980

ICSI UDIN:F008428G000187521

Date: April 24, 2025
Place: New Delh




To,

Annexure-‘A

The Members of

Satin Finserv Limited

(CIN: U65999HR2018P1L.C099128)

4th Floor, B Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog Vihar,
Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana-122016

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management’s Responsibility

1.

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations
and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures
followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared,
documents or records, in relation to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are free from
misstatement.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company.

8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the Company.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor

CP No. 5980

ICSI UDIN:F008428G000187521

Date: April 24, 2025
Place: New Delhi
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of Satin Finserv Limited (the ‘Company’) as tabled below:

S.
No.

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous Financial Year:

S. No.
1.

Name of
Director

Dr.
Harvinder
Pal Singh

Mr. Anil
Kumar Kalra
Mr. Sundeep
Kumar
Mehta

Ms. Jyoti
Ahluwalia

Director
since

August 10,
2018

August 10,
2018
August 10,
2018

March 30,
2021

Name of Director

Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna

Designation/
Category

Non-Executive
& Non-
Independent
Director
Independent
Director
Independent
Director

Independent
Director

DIN

00333754

07361739

00840544

09112407

Designation/Category
Whole Time Director and CEO

Number of Board Whether

Meetings

Held Attended

7 7
7 7
7 6
7 7

Attended
the last
AGM
held
on
August
08, 2024
Yes

Yes

Yes

Total No. Remuneration
of other
Director-
ships
held Salary and Sitting
other Fee
compensa-
tion
7 - _
1 - 3,10,000
1 - 2,80000
1 - 1,10,000

Comm-
ission

Nature of Change (resignation, appointment)

Resignation

/

No. of shares held
in, and convertible
instruments held
in the Company

NA

NA

NA

NA

Effective Date
January 16, 2025

During the year under review, there was no change in the Independent Directors of the Company. Further it is stated that there is no relationship amongst the directors
of the Company.
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The dates for the Board Meetings are fixed after taking into account the convenience of all the Directors and sufficient notice, in terms of applicable laws, is given to all
of them. All the agenda papers for the Board and Committee Meetings are disseminated electronically on a real-time basis via e-mail to all the Directors at least seven
days in advance from the date of Board Meetings and Committee Meetings. During the year under review, few shorter notice Meetings also convened as per the consent
of all Board Members. At the Board Meetings, the Director(s) and Senior Management make presentations on various matters including the financial results, operations
related issues, risk management, the economic and regulatory environment, compliance, investors” perceptions etc. All the information required for decision making are
incorporated in the agenda. The Board reviews the performance of the Company and sets the strategy for future. The Board takes on record the actions taken by the
Company on all its decisions periodically.

In line with the Company's commitment to digitization, BoardPAC Software —a secure, paperless meeting solution—is used to provide Board Members with seamless
access to agenda documents via mobile application. This platform upholds the highest standards of confidentiality and data security. Additionally, video conferencing
or other audio-visual means are utilized to enable Directors to participate in meetings when physical attendance is not possible.

None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than ten public companies and the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and also in terms of guidelines as issued by Reserve Bank of India. Further, none of the Directors holds any shares and/or
convertible instruments in the Company.

During the year under review, the Board met 07 (seven) times on April 22, 2024; July 24, 2024; September 9, 2024; October 25, 2024; January 16, 2025; January 31, 2025;
and March 20, 2025. The maximum interval between any two consecutive meetings was less than 120 days, in compliance with Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Secretarial Standard-1 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). While a minimum of four Board Meetings is mandated annually under
applicable laws, the Company convened additional meetings to address specific business requirements.

2) Committees of the Board and their Composition
i) Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee constituted in terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of RBI guidelines. As on March 31, 2025, the Committee
comprises of 3 (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. During the financial year,
the Committee met five (5) times. The dates of the Meetings being April 22, 2024; July 24, 2024; September 9, 2024; October 25, 2024 and January 31, 2025.

The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S. Name of Director Member of Designation/Category Number of % of No. of shares
No. Committee since Meetings of the = attendance held in the
Committee Company

Held Attended
1. Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta January 31, 2019 Chairman(Independent) 5 5 100 Nil
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23 Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh January 31, 2019 Member (Non-Executive Non- 5 5 100 Nil
Independent Director)

3. Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra January 31, 2019 Member(Independent 5 5 100 Nil
Director)

Terms of reference of Audit Committee are as under:

¢ Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company.

¢ Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.
¢ Examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon.

¢ Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties.

e Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

e Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary.

e Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

® Monitoring the end use of funds raised and related matters.

e To carry out any other function in terms of any other applicable guidelines or in any other applicable law.

ii) Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on March 31, 2025, NRC comprises of 3 (Three) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors and 1 (One)
Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. During the financial year, the Committee met four (4) times i.e. on, April 22, 2024; September 9, 2024; January 16,
2025 and March 20, 2025.

The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the NRC meetings during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S. Name of Director Member of Designation/Category Number of Meetings of = % of No. of shares
No. Committee since the Committee attendance held in the
Company
Held Attended
1 Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra January 31, 2019 Chairman (Independent 4 4 100 Nil

Director)
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2. Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh January 31, 2019 Member (Non-Executive 4 4 100 Nil
Non-Independent
Director)

3. Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta January 31, 2019 Member (Independent 4 3 75 Nil
Director)

Terms of reference of NRC are as under:

+ Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance;

» Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;

* Ensure and determine that the Board comprises of a balanced combination of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors and also the Independent
Directors and size of the Board and its diversity;

* Decide / approve details of fixed components and performance linked incentives (if any) along with the performance criteria;

+ Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation;

» Evaluating the performance of the Board Members and Senior Management in the context of the Company’s performance from business and compliance
perspective;

* Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension
or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their Service contract;

* Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;

* Recommend any necessary changes to the Board;

+ Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board; and to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and
also bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the
Committee shall deem appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board;

» To approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company;

» To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management;

* Torecommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management;

» To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating
to the Company’s operations;

» To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial persons and create competitive advantage;

» To devise a policy on Board diversity;
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* To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

» Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board;

» To implement and monitor policies and processes regarding principles of corporate governance;

*  Oversee the formulation and implementation of ESOP Schemes, its administration, supervision and formulating detailed terms and conditions in
accordance with applicable laws;

+ To evaluate case by case before finalizing issue of Equity Shares to employees under ESOP, formulate and evaluate policies and procedures of ESOP and
other related activities;

» Any other matter as required by the applicable laws and defined by the Board, from time to time.

The policy is laid down by Nomination and Remuneration Committee for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management & Other
Employees and the criteria formulated by the Committee for determining Qualifications, Positive Attributes, and Independence of Directors. Pursuant to Section
178 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Board of Directors of the Company has put
in place the Policy on Nomination & Remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personal (KMP), Senior Management and other Employees (“NRC Policy”).

iii) Risk Management Committee:

»  The Risk Management Committee (“RMC”) constituted in accordance with the applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on March 31, 2025, RMC
comprises of 4 (Four) members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors, 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 1 (One) members at
Executive Level

*  During the year under review, the RMC met 2 (Two) times on June 26, 2024 and December 24, 2024.

*  The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the RMC meetings during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S. Name of Director Member of Designation/Category Number of % of No. of shares
No. Committee since Meetings of the attendance held in the
Committee Company
Held Attended
1. | Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta May 2, 2019 Chairman (Independent Director) 2 2 100 Nil
2.  Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh May 2, 2019 Member (Non-Executive Non- 2 1 50 Nil
Independent Director)
3.  Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra May 2, 2019 Member ( Independent Director) 2 2 100 Nil

4. Mr. Surojit Chatterjee October 21, 2022 Member (Head- Credit & Risk ) 100 Nil

N
N




</
o= § 5
Satin Finserv Limited

Terms of reference of RMC are as under:

*  Recommend to the board and then formally announce, implement and maintain a sound system of risk oversight, management and internal control which:
v" Identifies, assesses, manages and monitors risk; and
v Allows investors and other stakeholders to be informed of material changes to the company's risk profile.

*  Recommend to the Board and then formally announce clear standards of ethical behaviour required of the senior management as well as the staff.

» Indischarging its responsibility, the committee is to develop and seek Board approval for a range of specific duties that it is to carry out. Such duties will
vary depending on the company's circumstances, the committee's responsibilities and, in particular, the role of the Board and other committee, such as
internal audit, operations, finance etc.

» To carry out any other function as may be delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

iv) Asset Liability Management Committee:

*  The Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALMC”) constituted in accordance with the applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on March 31,
2025, ALMC comprises of 3 (Three) members including 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 2 (Two) members at Executive Level. During
the year under review, the ALMC met 2 (Two) times on August 14, 2024 and February 10, 2025.

The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the ALMC meetings during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S. Name of Member of Designation/Category Number of Meetings of = % of No. of shares
No. Director Committee the Committee attendance  held in the
since Held Attended Company
1. Dr. Harvinder Pal February 22, 2019 Chairman(Non-Executive Non- 2 2 100 Nil
Singh Independent Director)
2. | *Mr. Dhiraj Jha January 17, 2025 Member (Chief Executive Officer) 2 1 50 Nil
3. Mr. Arjun Bansal August 3, 2021 Member (Chief Financial Officer) 2 100 Nil
4. *Mr. Bhuvnesh January 19, 2024 Member (Whole Time Director and 2 1 50 Nil
Khanna CEO)

* Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f January 16, 2025.
**Mr. Dhiraj Jha has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. January 17, 2025.

Terms of reference of ALMC are as under:

* To address concerns regarding asset liability mismatches,
» To address Interest rate risk exposure,




* Adhering to the relevant policies and regulations,
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* To Achieve optimal return on capital employed while maintaining acceptable levels of risk including and relating to liquidity, market and operational
aspects,

» To carry out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the ALM committee and also in terms of any other applicable guidelines or any
other applicable law and

* To carry out any other function as may be delegated by the Board of directors of the Company from time to time.

V)

IT Strategy Committee:

The IT Strategy Committee (“ITSC”) constituted in terms of applicable Master Directions issued by RBI. As on March 31, 2025, ITSC comprises of 6 (Six)
members including 2 (Two) Independent Directors, 1 (One) Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and 3 (Three) Members at Executive Level. During the
year under review, the ITSC met 4 (Four) times on June 26, 2024; September 30, 2025; December 30, 2025 and March 20, 2025.

The composition and details of the attendance of the Directors at the ITSC meetings during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S.

No.

8.

Name of Member

Mr. Anil Kumar Kalra
Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh

Mr. Sundeep Kumar
Mehta
#Mr. Dhiraj Jha

Mr. Arjun Bansal

#Mr. Aniruddha
Tripathi

*Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna

**Mr. Sunil Yadav

Member of
Committee
since

January 19, 2024
January 19, 2024

May 2, 2019
February 01,
2025

August 3, 2021
February 1, 2025
January 19, 2024

August 03, 2021

Designation/Category

Chairman (Independent Director)
Member (Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director )

Member (Independent Director)

Member (Chief Executive Officer)

Member (Chief Financial Officer )
Member (Head - IT (SFL))

Member (Whole Time Director and
CEO)
Member (Head - IT (SCNL))

Number of Meetings
of the Committee
Held Attended

4 4

4 4

4 4

4 1

4 4

4 1

4 3

4 2

% of
attendance

100
100

100

25

100
25

75

50

No. of shares held in
the Company

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA

NA

# Mr. Dhiraj [ha has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. January 17, 2025 and Mr. Aniruddha Tripathi has been appointed as Head-IT w.e.f. January 17, 2025.
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* Mr. Bhuvnesh Khanna (DIN: 03323118), Whole Time Director & CEO of the Company, had resigned w.e.f January 16, 2025.
**Mr. Sunil Yadav, Head-IT of SCNL, is no longer member of the committee due to reconstitution w.e.f. February 1, 2025.

3) General Body Meetings:

Details of General Body Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25 are given below:

S. Type of Meeting (Annual/Extra-Ordinary General Date and Place Whether any Special
No. Meeting) Resolution(s) passed
1. Annual General Meeting August 8, 2024 No

Gurugram, Haryana
2. Extra-Ordinary General Meeting October 28, 2024 No
Gurugram, Haryana

4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013- There was no instances of material non-compliances with requirements of Companies
Act, 2013.

5) Details of penalties and strictures- Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FOR SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-

Dr. Harvinder Pal Singh Mr. Sundeep Kumar Mehta
DIN: 00333754 DIN: 00840544

Director Director

Date: June 26, 2025
Place: Gurugram




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global Economy Overview

Following an unprecedented series of shocks in the
preceding years, global growth was stable yet
underwhelming through 2024. As the New Year
unfolds, the global economic trajectory continues to be
reshaped by a convergence of structural shifts, policy
realignments, and escalating geopolitical tensions. A
major disruption to the global economic order
emerged with the United States” enactment of broad-
based tariff measures, prompting swift retaliatory
actions from several major trading partners. These
developments culminated in the near-universal
imposition of tariffs effective April 2, 2025, driving
global tariff rates to historic highs not seen in over a
century. The unpredictability with which these
measures have been unfolding also has a negative
impact on economic activity and the outlook and, at
the same time, makes it more difficult than usual to
make assumptions that would constitute a basis for an
internally consistent and timely set of projections.

Intensifying downside risks dominate the outlook,
amid escalating trade tensions and financial market
adjustments. Divergent and swiftly changing policy
positions or deteriorating sentiment could lead to even
tighter global financial conditions. Ratcheting up a
trade war and heightened trade policy uncertainty
may further hinder both short-term and long-term
growth  prospects. Scaling back international
cooperation could jeopardize progress toward a more
resilient global economy.

Global headline inflation is expected to decline at a
pace that is slightly slower than what was expected in
January, reaching 4.3 percent in 2025 and 3.6 percent in
2026, with notable upward revisions for advanced
economies and slight downward revisions for
emerging market and developing economies in 2025.
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Growth of the Global Economy (in %)

GROWTH OF THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

43
37 39
33
3
- 28
1.8 14 15
World Advanced Economies Emerging Markets and
Developing Economies
w2024 ™2025* = 2026*

*Projections

(Source: IMF’s World Economic Outlook, April 2025)
Outlook

A steady growth trajectory shapes the global economic
outlook for 2024, though regional patterns vary. The
near-term global growth is expected to be a shade lower
than the trend level. The services sector continues to
drive global expansion, with notable resilience in India.
Meanwhile, manufacturing is struggling in Europe,
where structural weaknesses persist. Trade outlook also
remains clouded in the next year.

Inflationary pressures have been easing globally, though
risks of synchronised price pressures linger due to
potential geopolitical disruptions, such as tensions in the
Middle East and the ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict.
Central banks have adopted more accommodative
monetary policies. However, the pace of rate cuts varies
across regions depending on the growth imperatives
and the pace of disinflation, creating potential
divergences in economic recovery

The path forward demands clarity and coordination.
Countries should work constructively to promote a
stable and predictable trade environment, facilitate debt
restructuring, and address shared challenges. At the
same time, they should address domestic policy and
structural imbalances, thereby ensuring their internal
economic stability. This will help rebalance growth-
inflation trade-offs, rebuild buffers, and reinvigorate
medium-term growth prospects, as well as reduce
global imbalances. The priority for central banks
remains fine-tuning monetary policy stances to achieve
their mandates and ensure price and financial stability




in an environment with even more difficult trade-offs.
Macroprudential tools should be activated as needed to
contain the build-up of vulnerabilities and to provide
support in case of stress events. Restoring fiscal space
and putting public debt on a sustainable path remain an
important priority, while meeting critical spending
needs to ensure national and economic security. This
requires credible medium-term fiscal consolidation
plans. Structural reforms in labour, product, and
financial markets would complement efforts to reduce
debt and narrow cross-country disparities.

Indian Economy

In an era marked by escalating global trade tensions and
persistent geopolitical ~uncertainties, the Indian
economy has demonstrated remarkable resilience and
robust growth. India has firmly established itself as the
world’s fourth-largest economy, surpassing Japan, with
an impressive GDP growth of around 6.5% in 2024-25.
This momentum was driven by strong pipeline of
government-led infrastructure investments and
sustained expansion in key sectors, including finance,
real estate, and construction. Additionally, targeted
financial inclusion measures and a robust agricultural
performance have supported rural demand, further
contributing to overall economic growth. Notably, in Q4
(Ist January 2025 - 31st March 2025) of 2024-25, India’s
real GDP surged by 7.4% year-on-year, the highest
quarterly growth of the fiscal year, driven by a sharp
rebound in  industrial  activity,  particularly
manufacturing, mining, and construction, alongside a
significant uptick in net indirect tax collections. In its
June 6, 2025, policy review, the RBI executed a 50-bps
repo rate cut, bringing the rate down to 5.50%, and
simultaneously trimmed the Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR)
by 100 bps, injecting nearly INR 2.5 trillion of liquidity
into the banking system. This front-loaded easing,
building on earlier cuts of 25 bps in February and April,
signals a decisive pivot to rejuvenate growth. Inflation
has moderated, and policy measures have helped
stabilize market liquidity. However, foreign portfolio
outflows and currency depreciation remain key risks.

India’s economic outlook for 2025 and 2026 remains one
of the brightest among major global economies, as
highlighted by the IMF. Despite global uncertainties and
downward revisions in growth forecasts for other large
economies, India is set to maintain its leadership in
global economic growth. With reforms in infrastructure,
innovation, and financial inclusion, India continues to
enhance its role as a key driver of global economic
activity. The IMF’s projections reaffirm India’s resilience,
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further solidifying its importance in shaping the global
economic future.

As the country aims to accelerate its economic growth
rate in the coming years, it has the tailwind of strong
balance sheets in the domestic corporate and financial
sectors. But globalisation is on the retreat. Hence, raising
the growth average in the next two decades will require
reaping the demographic dividend through a
deregulation stimulus. The domestic economy remains
steady amidst global uncertainties.

In this global context, India displayed steady economic
growth. Growth in the first half of FY25 was supported
by agriculture and services, with rural demand
improving on the back of record Kharif production and
favourable agricultural conditions. The manufacturing
sector faced pressures due to weak global demand and
domestic seasonal conditions. Private consumption
remained stable, reflecting steady domestic demand.
Fiscal discipline and strong external balance supported
by a services trade surplus and healthy remittance
growth contributed to macroeconomic stability.
Together, these factors provided a solid foundation for
sustained growth amid external uncertainties

(Source- httpsy//fwww.pib.gov.in/ and Economic Survey
and Reuters)

Inflation

Retail inflation in India, as measured by the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), which reflects the cost of everyday
goods and services, fell to a remarkable 4.6% in the fiscal
year 2024-25, the lowest since 2018-19. This milestone
highlights the effectiveness of the Reserve Bank of
India’s pro-growth monetary policy, which has
successfully balanced economic expansion with price
stability. Notably, the year-on-year inflation rate for
March 2025 dropped to 3.34%, a decline of 27 basis
points from February 2025, marking the lowest monthly
inflation rate since August 2019.

Year on Year Inflation rate based on CPI

3.79
3.25 332 343 3.61 334

2
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(Source- https.//www.pib.gov.in/)




Future Projection

India is projected to remain the fastest-growing large
economy for 2025 and 2026, reaffirming its dominance
in the global economic landscape. The country’s
economy is expected to expand by 6.2 per cent in 2025
and 6.3 per cent in 2026, outpacing many of its global
counterparts. In contrast, the IMF projects global
economic growth to be much lower, at 2.8 per cent in
2025 and 3.0 per cent in 2026, highlighting India's
exceptional outperformance.

The growth trajectory for India’s non-banking finance
companies is set to decelerate, with asset growth
projected at 15-17% year-on-year (Y-o-Y) for FY25 and
FY26, compared to 23% in FY24. Despite the slowdown,
the projected growth remains above the decadal average
of 14%, driven largely by core segments such as home
and vehicle loans, according to CRISIL Ratings and
Fitch.

(Source-ETBFSI)

Outlook & Way Forward

A steady growth trajectory shapes the global economic
outlook for 2024, though regional patterns vary. The
near-term global growth is expected to be a shade lower
than the trend level. The services sector continues to
drive global expansion, with notable resilience in India.
Meanwhile, manufacturing is struggling in Europe,
where structural weaknesses persist. Trade outlook also
remains clouded in the next year. Inflationary pressures
have been easing globally, though risks of synchronised
price pressures linger due to potential geopolitical
disruptions, such as tensions in the Middle East and the
ongoing Russia-Ukraine conflict. Central banks have
adopted more accommodative monetary policies.
However, the pace of rate cuts varies across regions
depending on the growth imperatives and the pace of
disinflation, creating potential divergences in economic
recovery. On the domestic front, rebounding rural
demand augurs well for consumption. Investment
activity is expected to pick up, supported by higher
public capex and improving business expectations.
Capacity utilisation in manufacturing remains above the
long-term average, and private sector order books have
shown steady growth, alongside a rise in investment
intentions. However, these gains could be tempered by
the global excess capacities in sectors such as steel,
leading to aggressive trade policies in search of demand.
- Good Rabi production is likely to contain food prices
in the first half of FY26. Adverse weather events and rise
in international agricultural commodity prices,
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however, pose risks to food inflation. Global energy and
commodity prices have softened in the recent past,
making the core inflation outlook benign. However,
risks remain on account of significant global political
and economic uncertainties. In brief, there are many
upsides to domestic investment, output growth and
disinflation in FY26. There are equally strong,
prominently extraneous, downsides too. On balance of
these considerations, we expect that the growth in FY26
would be between 6.3 and 6.8 per cent. Navigating
global headwinds will require strategic and prudent
policy management and reinforcing the domestic
fundamentals.

(Source-PIB Retail Inflation)

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW: STRUCTURE AND
DEVELOPMENT

Financial institutions play a pivotal role in shaping a
country's economic growth trajectory by facilitating
savings, investments, and credit for economic activities.
The prevailing monetary policies influence the interplay
between financial intermediation and economic growth.

The financial services sector in India exemplifies the
progress and potential of the economy. Projected to
grow significantly through 2035, this sector is driven by
increasing incomes, a strong government emphasis on
financial inclusion, and the widespread adoption of
digital technologies. By 2030, digital payments in India
are expected to surpass $1 trillion, highlighting the
sector's rapid evolution and future opportunities.

The loan growth of Indian Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) will moderate to 17 per cent in
FY25, down from 21 per cent in FY24, as stated in a
report. It was noted that this moderation is attributed to
weaker credit demand due to softer macroeconomic
conditions.

The reduced lending to unsecured and microfinance
loans (MFI), and a cyclical slowdown in segments such
as automobiles, has contributed to this moderation.

It is also noted that Asset Under Management (AUM)
growth for NBFCs is expected to slow to 20 per cent in
FY25, compared to 24 per cent in FY24. However, HFCs
may see improved AUM growth, rising to 12-13 per cent
in FY26 from 11 per cent in FY24.

The report anticipated that economic activity would
improve in FY26, supporting the stabilization of growth
across the sector. Over the FY25-27 period, the coverage
AUM (excluding IIFL) is projected to grow at a




compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 19 per cent,
slightly higher than the 18 per cent expected in FY25.
The growth in loans for Non-Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs) and Housing Finance Companies
(HFCs) has slowed to 20 per cent as of September 2024,
compared to 22 per cent in March 2024.

The report highlighted that the slowdown has been most
pronounced in unsecured personal loans, consumer
financing, and MFI loans, while other segments have
experienced relatively modest deceleration in growth
during the first half of FY25.

Incremental growth trends in 2025 are likely to vary by
segment. While growth in unsecured loans and MFI
loans is expected to remain subdued during the first half
of the calendar year, the report added that segments like
auto loans and others are likely to stabilize and
potentially pick up if macroeconomic conditions
improve as anticipated.

(Source- Economic Times)

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)
sector has emerged as a highly vibrant and dynamic
sector of the Indian economy contributing around 30%
of India’s GDP, over 45% of India’s exports. In the fiscal
year ending September 2024, the sector added 11 million
jobs bringing total employment to about 121 million
from 110 million in the previous fiscal. It is projected that
the MSME sector will grow to USD 1 trillion by 2028
providing immense and diverse opportunities across
industries and supply chain systems.

In FY 2024-25, the MSME sector recorded a robust
growth rate of around 13%, underscoring its expanding
role in the economy and its increasing contribution to
exports and manufacturing output. The government’s
sustained focus on initiatives such as the Credit
Guarantee Fund Scheme, Digital MSME platforms, and
improved access to finance has been instrumental in
driving robust growth in the MSME sector, enabling
small businesses to scale up and innovate. The key
programs launched during the year including the
Yashasvini Initiative, MSME-TEAM, and ZED 2.0
schemes have further empowered MSMEs by promoting
women entrepreneurship, accelerating digital adoption,
and enhancing quality standards. Collectively, these
initiatives play a crucial role in fostering inclusive
growth, expanding market access, and strengthening the
competitiveness of the sector.

Source: MSME Annual Report 2024-25, MSME Pulse by
TransUnion CIBIL and Daily Pioneer
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PESTEL ANALYSIS

The Indian financial sector operates within a complex
web of factors influencing its growth and stability. The
breakdown of these key influences can be done by a
PESTEL Analysis.

« Initiatives such as the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee
Scheme (ECLGS) in order to provide Liquidity support
to MSMEs and other sectors and Credit Guarantee Fund
schemes as launched by Department for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade (DPIIT) create lending

Political opportunities and reduce credit risk and Credit

Factors Guarantee Fund Scheme for Skill Development to

promote collateral-free loans for skilling and vocational

training.

« Interest Rates: As of June 2025, the Reserve Bank o\f<
India (RBI) has maintained the repo rate at 5.5%, which
influences loan interest rates offered by banks.

* Economic Cycles & Credit Risk: Slowdowns, increase
Economic NPA levels and stress collections, especially in
Factors unsecured or MSME loan segments. Conversely,
economic expansion boosts credit offtake. )
« Financial Inclusion Push: There is rising demand f(D
credit in underserved segments like rural, informal sector,

MSMEs which aligns with the SFL’s lending models.

* Trust and Transparency: After past defaults, customer

SVEIBEE  and investor confidence is tightly linked to perceived

governance and transparency of the Company. Y,

N
« Efficient Loan Journeys through Al: Advanced

technologies like Al and digital platforms streamline the
loan application and approval process, reducing approval

Technological . . A
e times and enhancing customer experience. )
~
* Green Lending Opportunities: NBFCs can diversify
portfolios into EV financing, solar energy loans, and
el other green finance products as ESG demand rises.
Factors
J
* Scale-Based Regulatory Framework: The RBI’s 2021
framework imposes tighter norms like governance and
risk management.
* KYC & AML Regulations: Strengthening of
LLelBR Ul el  compliance expectations around onboarding, reporting,
and monitoring customer behavior. )

COMPANY OVERVIEW

SFL was incorporated as a limited company on August
10, 2018, under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “‘Act’) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Satin Creditcare Network Limited. Registered as a
Non-Banking Financial Company the company is
engaged in the business of loan to entrepreneurs,
MSMESs and individual businesses.




SFL has adopted a unique credit underwriting and
assessment model to understand the income source

and derive eligibility of the potential customers.

OUR OFFERINGS

Small Ticket Business Loan

Ticket size: Rs. 1.5 lakhs to Rs. 3.5 lakhs

Tenor: upto 60 months

Large Ticket Business L.oan

Ticket size: upto Rs. 500 lakhs

Tenor: upto 60 months

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

SFL had 47 branches of SME across 11 states. The
Company plans to continue its growth journey by
opening more branches and further investing in
technology to optimize operating costs and improve
collection efficiency.

OWNERSHIP & STRATEGIC FOCUS

The primary objective of SFL is to provide financing
solutions to the SME, MSME, and self-employed
segments. SFL's entry into the MSME and self-
employed loan segments addresses the significant gap
in access to organized finance for these groups. SFL
aims to bridge the financial inclusion gap and support
the growth and sustainability of SMEs and MSMEs in
India.

OUR STRENGTHS

> Secured lending against primary collateral

> Well tested & credit stabilized customer with high
credit score history

> Use of social scoring to defined entry Level Filter

» Cash flow analysis based on sales & credit personal
discussion in the absence of significant banking &
income documents

> Centralized credit system supported by automated
decisioning. Cash flow assessment based on
household consumptions -Score Card Matrix

» 3-fold control on profile checks (Sales PD, Credit
Video PD, pre-sighting) before disbursement

> Post disbursement sample field investigation
checks by external vendors
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> Approved Industry segments primarily centered

on Essentials and customized offering grids
according to industry segments

> E-Nach and E-Agreement features available to

support faster disbursement.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

>

In FY 2024-25, the Company’s loan portfolio
witnessed healthy growth, supported by continued
geographic expansion, while maintaining stable net
profit margins.

Strategic  investments in  technology and
strengthened credit assessment frameworks have
significantly improved operational efficiency and
enhanced the overall customer experience.

The disbursements during the year stood at Rs.
34,789.53 lakhs, reflecting a robust year-on-year
growth of 58.6%.

The Company’s AUM grew by 9.3% YoY to reach Rs.
54,767.55 lakhs. Notably, the retail SME segment
demonstrated strong performance, with AUM
increasing by 58.2% YoY to Rs. 51,631.84 lakhs. The
Company continues to prioritize growth in its retail
portfolio.

The GNPA & NNPA as of Mar’25 stood at 4.84% &
2.86% reflecting robust portfolio quality

The Company maintains a strong and diversified
funding base with 21 active lenders, including banks,
impact funds, and financial institutions; added 6 new
lenders during the period under review.

The CRAR stood at a healthy 37.6% as of Mar’25;
indicating a strong capital position.

Credit Rating of A- (Stable) from ICRA.

Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Revenue from 12,470.80 11,901.04
Operations

Other Income 190.91 239.47
Total revenue 12,661.71 12,140.51
Expenses

Employee Benefit 4,717.02 5,755.34
expenses

Impairment on 1,328.66 358.23
financial

instruments

Finance cost 4,007.32 2,643.63




Depreciation and 187.89 156.44
amortization

expenses

Other expenses 1,362.52 2,523.35
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit before Tax 1,058.30 703.52
Less: Tax Expenses 313.02 188.75
Profit after Tax 745.28 514.77
Add: Other 0.41 (3.24)
comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive 745.69 511.53
income

Earnings per share
Basic 0.47 0.36
Diluted 0.47 0.36

During the year under review, the Company reported
a profit after tax of Rs. 745.28 lakhs, compared to Rs.
514.77 lakhs for the previous year, resulting in an
increase of 44.78%. This increase can be attributed to a
4.29% increase in total revenue, which rose from Rs.
12,140.51 lakhs to Rs. 12,661.71 lakhs, coupled with a
1.46% increase in total expenses, which grew from Rs.
11,436.99 lakhs to Rs. 11,603.41lakhs.

FUNDING PROFILE

SFL continues to strengthen its funding framework
through  well-calibrated  diversification  across
instruments and lender categories enhancing stability.
On the product side, Term Loans remained the
backbone of the funding mix at 52%, NCDs at 21% and
PTC at 27%. On the lender side, share of Domestic
Institutions stood at 73%, Banks at 6% and Others at
21%, signalling access to a broader lender base.

STRONG RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is a pivotal element of SFL.
Acknowledging risks is an inherent component of the
business landscape, therefore, the Company focuses on
effective risk mitigation. SFL follows a comprehensive,
enterprise-wide risk management framework, that is
adept at identifying and analysing risks promptly and
providing proactive measures to manage potential
impacts effectively.

The Company is governed by the Board and supported
by a dedicated Risk Management Committee, seeking
to balance risk and return optimally, fostering
sustainable value creation for stakeholders.
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Operational Risk

Operational risks are mitigated through robust internal
control systems and continuous procedural monitoring
to ensure process integrity throughout the
organization. Clear segregation of duties is
maintained, supported by stringent access controls,
authorization protocols, and reconciliation
mechanisms. The digitization of credit operations has
significantly reduced dependency on manual
processes, thereby minimizing errors and enhancing
efficiency. Furthermore, proactive measures are in
place to detect and prevent organizational frauds,
while dedicated oversight mechanisms address
collection slippage to safeguard financial stability and
maintain portfolio quality.

Liquidity Risk

The Company adheres to a robust Liquidity Risk
Management framework to ensure the timely
availability of funds at optimal costs for meeting
financial obligations and supporting business growth.
Liquidity risks are actively monitored by the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO), which
utilizes a dynamic Asset Liability Management (ALM)
framework. This framework enables efficient
management of maturity mismatches between
financial assets and liabilities, ensuring a stable and

well-balanced liquidity position under varying market
conditions.

Credit Risk

The Company has established a comprehensive credit
risk management framework, underpinned by well-
defined policies, procedures, and advanced analytics
to strengthen credit decision-making. By leveraging
machine learning tools for real-time data analysis, the
Company effectively evaluates borrowers'
creditworthiness with greater precision and speed. An
independent internal audit team ensures strict
adherence to regulatory and internal compliance
standards. Additionally, robust stress testing
mechanisms perform sensitivity analyses to identify
and monitor potentially vulnerable accounts, enabling
proactive risk mitigation.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is managed through a strategic
balance of asset-liability durations and the adoption of
diversified funding sources. This approach optimizes
the Company’s borrowing profile, reduces interest




costs, and enhances the stability of funding under
varying rate environments.

Regulatory Risk

The Company maintains proactive regulatory
compliance by continuously monitoring changes in the
legal and regulatory environment. Internal systems
and operational practices are promptly updated to
align with new directives, ensuring adherence while
preserving business continuity and integrity.

IT and Data Risk

IT and data risks are overseen by the IT Strategy
Committee, which ensures alignment between
technology initiatives and business objectives. The
Company’s risk mitigation strategy addresses
cybersecurity threats, enforces data protection
protocols, and ensures continuous upgrades to IT
infrastructure in line with regulatory and industry
standards.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always prioritised providing its
employees with a discrimination-free environment
that promotes diversity and inclusion.

Employee-centricity has always been a paramount
concern for the organization, and your Company has
implemented various policies and initiatives to ensure
the well-being of its employees. These include
provisions such as advance against medical exigency
leaves, Satin Sahyog, Satin Ease, and Satin Suraksha,
Satin Leave Bank leaving no stone unturned in
prioritizing employee welfare. Frequent training
programs and extra curriculum activities are
conducted by the Company to enhance the skills and
capabilities of its workforce and to motivate the
employees.

SFL has a robust framework for employee engagement
that facilitates the development and retention of a
highly motivated team. To strengthen the Company’s
journey into the future, it is providing specialised
training to its employees in accordance with its
mission and strategy. The training and development
initiatives of the Company enable employees to
acquire the technical and behavioural skills necessary
for their professional and personal development. As of

=/

Satin Finserv Limited

March 31, 2025, the Company employed total no. of
1,022 individuals, including 31 women employees.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal control system is designed to
ensure operational efficiency, protection and
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in
financial reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations. The internal control system is supported
by an internal audit process for reviewing the
adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal
controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. Your
Company have proper Maker Checker system in all
departments. The Statutory Auditors also review and
comment on the internal financial controls in its report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This document contains forward-looking statements
and information that are based upon the Company's
expectations and various assumptions at the time of
writing. These statements inherently involve risks and
uncertainties. If any of these risks or uncertainties
materialise, or should the underlying assumptions
prove incorrect, the actual outcomes may significantly
differ from those projected. The Company expressly
disclaims any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements in this document, should
the future developments deviate from those initially
anticipated.
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To,

The Board of Directors,

Satin Finserv Limited,

Plot no. 492, Wing-4B, Udyog Vihar, Phase-lll,

Gurugram, Haryana - 122016

Sub: Master Direction - Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

We, Rajeev Bhatia & Associates, have audited the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (the “Company”) for
the period ended March 31, 2025 and have issued our report dated April 25, 2025.

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company referred to above and information / explanations and
representations received from the management, we confirm the following particulars:

(A) In the case of all Non-Banking Financial Companies

1. The company has obtained a Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India under section 45-1A of
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

2. The company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of its Principal Business Criteria (Financial
asset/income pattern) as on March 31, 2025.

3. The company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in Master Direction - Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 and amendments thereon from

time to time.
(B) In the case of a non-banking financial companies accepting/holding public deposits

Being a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, para (B) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(€) In the case of a non-banking financial company not accepting public deposits
We further confirm that:
1. The Board of Directors has passed a resolution for non-acceptance of any public deposits dated Apri! 22, 2024.

2. As per our verification of books of accounts and further explanation and information produced before us, we
confirm that the Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

3. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting standards, asset
classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of Master Dlrectmn - Reserve
Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023. -
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4. The Capital adequacy ratio as disclosed in the return submitted to the RBI in form DNBS-03, has been correctly
arrived at and is in compliance with the minimum CRAR prescribed. The company has furnished the return within the
stipulated period.

5. On the basis of our verification and further explanation and information as produced before us, we confirm that
the Company has been registered with Reserve Bank of India under section 45-IA under the category — Loan Company.
Accordingly, classification as NBFC Micro Finance Institutions (MFI) as defined in the Master Direction - Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 is not applicable to the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

(D) In the case of a company engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution not required to hold CoR
subject to certain conditions

Para (D) of Chapter Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

This certificate is addressed to and provided to Board of Directors of the Company, in terms of Chapter Il of Master
Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, solely for the purpose
of enabling it to comply with the requirement of the Master Directions which inter alia requires it to submit the
certificate by the Statutory Auditors to Board of Directors and should not be used, referred to of distributed for any
other purposes without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability if it is to be
used for other than its intended purpose without our prior written consent.

Place of Signature: Delhi . For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Dated: April 25, 2025 Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

6 Rajeev Bhatia
Partner
M. No. 089018

UDIN-D5684 0l £ BMOVY (3285
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Satin Finserv Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information

(hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at March 31, 2025, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs™) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Actand the rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the financial statements and our

Auditors’ Report thereon.

Our opinion on Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),
profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
pany

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures rasponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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(b) Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with respect to Financial Statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
_ significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we arerequired to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the

Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were nei:}e_s_sar.,y-fc)r the purpose of our audit.
8 il L8
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our exarnination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of

account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements:

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

(i) the Company did not have any pending litigations which impacted its financial position as at March 31,
2025;

(i) the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for wh{ch there were
any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025;

(i)  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025;

(iv)  a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

_ b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
o omaterial either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
N \ ent|ty, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
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v)

(vi)
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or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material

misstatement

As per the information and records provided to us by the company, no dividend has been declared or
paid during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which displays the dates
of creation and authorisation of the transaction keeping the system date as a base and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with
and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record

retention.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

ff
i} e
Raje hatia
Partner

Membership No.: 089018
UDIN- 25099 0|8 BMOYYP U232

Place:
Date: April 25, 2025
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Annexure A to the independent Auditors” Report

Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date of Satin Finserv Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025)

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use assets and Intangible Assets

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets on the basis of
available information.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets of the Company were physically verified
as at the year-end by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

Q) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where
the company is the lessee and lease agreements are duly executed in the favor of lessee) under Property,
plant and equipment in its name as on March 31, 2025 and during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(i) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(if) Inventories & Working Capital Limit

a) The Company is a service company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph
3(i7) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

-b).._ According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
- rompany does not have a working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, sanctioned from any bank or
"‘ijr"manciai institution on the basis of security of current assets during the year and as on March 31, 2025.
JKLHI Hence, the reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(iii) Loans granted by company

a) The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reportlng under clause 3(iii)(a) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, we are
of the opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans in nature of loans and advances, during the
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest

c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest have generally been
regular as per stipulation. Since the Company is an NBFC, and considering the significant volume of
transactions with number of borrowers, furnishing the number of cases of default is practically not feasible.

d) In respect of loans granted by the company, the details of total amount overdue above go days are as
follows:
No. of cases Principal Amount | Interest Overdue | Total Overdue (in | Remarks |
' Overdue (inRs.) | (inRs.) Rs.) '
1929% 7,51,72,712.00 3,84,16,192.00 11,35,88,904.00 | NIL
*excluding restructured cases
The company is taking reasonable steps for the recovery of principal and interest overdue amount.

e) The Company is registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC). Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or

without specifying any terms or period of repayment du rlng the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ii)(f)
is not applicable.

(iv) Compliance of Section 185 and 186 of The Act

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of loans granted, to the extent applicable.

(v) Acceptance of Deposits

~According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has neither'
- a%epted any deposits from the public nor any deposits are outstanding during the year. There are no
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deemed deposits under the provisions of the Act and rules thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) Maintenance of Cost records

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the requirement of
maintenance of cost records pursuant te Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by
the Central Government in terms of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) Payment of Applicable Taxes

a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and the records of the company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
income-tax, goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and
other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authoerities in India.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
income-tax, service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional taxes and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable.

'b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by
us, during the period under audit, there are no dues of income tax or any other applicable statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) Undisclosed income

According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions relating to previously
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) Dues to a Financial Institution or bank or debenture holder

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of Interest thereon
to any lender and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable

b) Based on the information and explanations give to us, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter
by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, funds
raised on short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) Initial Public Offer

a)

b)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, during
the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xi) Fraud by the Company or on the Company

a)

b)

)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, no
report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report. '

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company
during the year. hence reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(xii) Nidhi Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiii) Related Party Transactions

3
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According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.
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Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,

A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar

Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009

9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatizassociates.com

(xiv) Internal Audit

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, in
our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the
year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Non - Cash Transactions

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

‘xvi) Registration with RBI

a) The Company was required to be registered under Section 451A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 134 (2 of
1934) as an NBFC and has been registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 as a
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC).

b) Acc.ording to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial activities without a valid Certificate of -
Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

<) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records,
the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India, accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) As per the information and explanation provided to us by the company, there is not more than one CICin
the group (in accordance with the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016).

«vii) Cash Losses

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of records, the
Company has not incurred any Cash Losses during the year and the immediately preceding fmanua! year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

xviif) Resugnatlon of Statutory Auditor

>/ i There: has been no resignation of Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. Hence the reporting
Nﬂderclause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

/L f
=5
o

Annexure A to the Indenendent Auditor’s Renort of SATIN FINSFRV | IMITFD for FY 30%4-78 Pacecnfh



Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,

A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar

Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009

9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

(xix) Material Uncertainty about the Company’s Capability to discharge its liabilities

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors’ and Management’s plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance

sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is'based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Corporate Social Responsibility

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are applicable on the company. However, considering average profit
for last 3 years, amount required to be spent under CSR is nil. Accordingly, there are no unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing or other than ongoing projects requiring a
transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5)
of section 135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order is not
applicable of the company.

(xxi) Qualification or Adverse Remarks by the respective auditors

Since the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements, the reporting under this
clause is not applicable to the company.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

Raj
Partner

Bhatia

Membership No.: 089018
UDIN- 2508%0l ¥BM oY YP 4232

Place: Delhi
Date: April 25, 2025
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Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,

A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

, Dr. Mukherjee Nagar
Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009

9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Satin Finserv Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Independent Auditors’ Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (‘IFCoFR’)

of the Company as at that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCOFR, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6. A company’s IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that:

2 /) )i
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Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants

201, 203, 2nd Floor,

A-20, Indraprastha Bhawan,

Dr. Mukherjee Nagar

Commercial Complex, Delhi-110009
9810057854, 9990511249, 9711842888
info@rajeevbhatiaassociates.com

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors of the

Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
Opinion

8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 021776N

(AR I
o A

s MG -
-

RajeeyBhatia <| DELHI
Partner
Membership No.: 089018

UDIN- 250890183 M OYYpy232_

Place: Delhi

Date: April 25, 2025
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

{All amounts in T in lakhs, unless staed otherwise)

Particulars

ASSETS
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash wquivalents

Trade receivables
Livans

Other financial assers

Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Dreferced tax assets (net)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Capital Works-in-Progress
Other non financial asscts

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Financial Liabilities
Payables .
Treade payables
total outstanding ducs of MSMEs

total putstanding dues of ereditors other than MSAIHs

Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Other financial labilitics

Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilides

EQUITY
Equity share eapital

Other equity

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

6,005.8:4 3.485.80
5 269209 3.052.09
fi 17.72 33704
7 SHEIT0N5 o L e
8 1,187.52 896.35
60,724.02 42,871.76
9 1,096.52 923.73
10 937.09 1,090.99
11 602.41 331.98
12 5.38 2.36
12A - 9.21
13 R29.78 575.09
3,471.18 2,933.36
64,195.20 45,805.12

14
43.17 13.78
19994 113,24
15 8,974.09 1,95213
16 34,885.46 23459.3¢
17 30014 243.12
44,403.80 25,781.70
18 660,61 1,636,22
19 106.05 108.15
766.66 1,744.37
20 1575579 15.755.79
21 3,268,953 2,523.26
19,024.74 18,279.05
64,195.20 45,805.12

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our review report of even date attached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates
Charered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 021776

Partier
M. No O8N18

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

1

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

Sawn Finserv Limited

Harvinder Pal Singh
~pJN: 001333754
Director M
Vo

Chief Executive Officer
Place : G-urugmm

Arjyn Bansal
b

Chief Financial Officer
Place : Gurugram
Dare: April 25, 2025

ndeep Kumar Mehta
DN O0R41544
Director
Place : Gurugram

/@, a M-Pm's sof
-
Saug:l:‘laiswal

Mem No: A44284

Company Secretary & CCO
Place : Gurugram




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Statement of Profitand Loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Bitisubics Nuitse For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from operations

Interest income 22 101,245.59 6,547.50)
Fees and commission income 23 2,129.04 5,280.31
Net gain on fair value changes 24 96,17 625
Total revenue from operations 12,470.80 . 11,901.04
Orther income 25 190.91 23947
Total income 12,661.71 12,140.51
Expenses:

Finance costs 26 4,007.32 2,643.03
Imputement on financial inscruments 2 1,325.66 358.23
Limployee benefits expense 28 4,7117.02 5,755.34
Depreciation and amostization expense 29 187.89 156.44
Other expenses 30 1,362.52 2.:523.35
Total expenses 11,603.41 11,436.99
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax 1,058.30 703.52
LExceptional items 2 =
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,058.30 703.52
Prior period items
Tax expense
Cusrent fax 159.27 150.41
at eredit utilization/ (enttlement) (net) 338 (15041
Deferred rax expense/ {eredil 119.37 184.21
Eadier years tax - 4.53
Total tax expense 313.02 188.75
Net profit/ (loss) for the period 745.28 514.77
Orther comprehensive income
Item that will not td be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gaing/(Josses) on defined henefit plans 0.56 (44
Income tax relating to these items {1.16) 125
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 0.41 (3.29)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 745.69 511.53
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (in Rs.)
Basie (Rs.) 0.47 1,36
Diluted (Rs.) 0.47 .36

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our review report of even date anached

For Rajeev Bhatia & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 021776N

Place: Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

Harvinder Pal Singh
IDIM: 00333754

Chief Exccutive
Place : Gurugram

jun Bansal

ief Financial Officer
Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

1IN (OR40544
Dircctor
Place : Gurugram

; ""P
&):jﬁl&fqi_
Sangant Jaiswal + "

Mem No: Ad44284

Company Secretary & CCO

Place : Gurugram

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of )
Satin Finscrv Limited




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Cash Mow staiement for the perfod ended March 31, 2025
(ATl nmounrs i 3 m lakds, unless saed otherwise)

Mow starement

The secompanying notes aee an integeal pact of the Foansial satenonts,
Ad pee out review report of oven daie anached

For Rajeey Bhatia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration Mo.: 021776

Satm Fingerv Limited

TNz (333754
irector

Partmer
Mo EHTH

Chief Executive (fficer
Place : Gurugram

Arjun Bansal
/S;L:h
Chicef Finangial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date: April 25, 2025

Place: Gurugram
Drave: April 25, 2025

For and on beball of the Board of Directors of

e

Wirtdnilnm For the period ended For the period ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/ (Loss) before tax LOSRA0 T03.52
Adjustmenis for:
Pravision for expecied coedit losses 665,10 4245
Provisson for employee benelits 2593 (57.98)
Dieprecinton and amermisation expense 0473 81.26
Deprecinnon of ROU dsscs 3,16 7518
Luss/{pmin] on disposzal of mngible assers (4.59) (1467
lineeest paid on borrowings 3,956,530 271016
Operating Profit/ (loss) Before Working Capital Changes 5,888,93 3,589.62
o ing capital:
Adinciments for fiwcrense) deerease iy opernting asets:
Trule recevables CHETR ] {30.31)
Oither bank halances 1,266.70 (798.25)
Fianceal Asseis (19,202,583} (10,158,04)
Orther financnl assets (201.17) (206.27)
Other non fingncal assers (254.68) {235.05)
Adieriments for {inersie)f decrtase o gperatiug fobetitie:
“Trmde payables 11605 (6297
Other financial liabilitics 58.02 (28.37)
Onlser non fmascinl liabilities 240 048
Provisioig [1,000,98) 16214
Movement in operating assers and linbilities (19,081L.07) (1L.465.64)
Cash gencrated from operations {13,192.14) {7.876.02)
Lesst Tneowse tax ecfund [/ [paid) (nee) (332,06} (5189
Net cash fow/(used) in operating activities (A) (13,524.2(1) (7.957.91)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plint and equipment (345.61) (268,07
Sale of property, plant and equipment 98,06 107.26
Investment i Pss theough Certificaies * 2
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (447.55) (150.81)
C. CASI FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Issue ol couity shane capital (et of issoe CXpenscs) - 400000
Repayment of boreowings {15, 6444.68) (15,340:606)
Progeeds from borowings 33.960.12 2374762
Intesest pawl on borrowings (3,956,530 (271006
Payment of lease lisbilivies 132,39 49.31
Net cash flow from financing setivities (<) 14,491.73 9,746.11
Met (Decrease)/ Increase in cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) 519.98 1,607.39
Cash and cash equivalenss at the beginning of the year 5483.80 3ETRAT
Cash and cash equivalents ar the end of the year 6,005.84 5,485.36
Reconciliation of cash and cosh equivalents as per the cash 510.08 L6739

ndeep Kumar Mehta
THENE 0858
Dhirecior

Sungam Jaiswal i

Mem Mot A44244
Company Secretary & CCO
Plage : Gurugram
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Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended
Mazrch 31, 2025

Company Overview / Corporate Information

Satin Finserv Limited (‘the Company”) is a public limited company and incorporated on August 10, 2018, under the
provisions of Companies Act. The Company is a non-deposit accepting Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND") and is registered as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC') with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) in
January 09, 2019. The main objective of the Company to catry on the business of Non-Banking Financial Company
and to undertake business relating to financing. The Company is also engaged in the business of “Business
Correspondent” activity with various Banks and NBFCs. As per Reserve Bank of India (RBI), scope of activity of
Business Correspondent services includes Identification of Borrowets, collection and preliminary processing of loan
applications including verification of primary information, processing and submission of applications to banks,
promoting, nurturing and monitoring of Self Help Groups/Joint Liability Groups, post-sanction monitoring, follow-
up for recovery, disbursal of small value credit and recovery of principal/collection of interest. The Company is
domiciled in India and its registered office & corporate office is situated at 4th Floor, B-Wing, Plot No. 492, Udyog
Vihas, Phase-III, Gurugram, Haryana - 122016.

Basis of preparation

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

These Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements™) have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA’) under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended Match 31, 2025 are the financial statements, which has been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and other applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI’).

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on April 25, 2025.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities and share based payments which are measured at fair values as explained

in relevant accounting policies.
Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement. bases
summarised as below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the financial statements, except where the
Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition to Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, bortowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as approptiate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred and the cost of item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repaits and




b)

Satin Finserv Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the period ended

Mazrch 31, 2025
Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, usefiel lives and residual valus)
Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written-down method over the useful life
of the assets as prescribed under Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Asset class Useful life
Office equipment ' 5 yeats
Computer and accessories — end user devices 3 years
Computer and accessories — network equipment | 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Plant and machinery 6 - 15 years

Depreciation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset
is sold or disposed. ' '

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
ot when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.

Capital worke-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and advances paid to
acquire property, plant and equipment. Assets which are not ready to intended use ate also shown under capital work-

in-progress.
Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price including any import duties
and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from taxation authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent measurenent (amortisation) ;
Intangible assets are amortised over a period of 3 years from the date when the assets are available for use. The

estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived basis the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits and is reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation period is revised to reflect
the changed pattern, if any.

Revenue recognition

Lnterest, administration and other charges (for loans)

Interest, administration and other charges received are recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method along with the consideration of transaction cost directly attributable to the creation of financial instrument
being Loan Asset. Additional interest/overdue interest/penal charges are recognised ouly when it is reasonable certain
that the ultimate collection will be made.

Copmrission tncore
Income from business correspondent services is recognised as and when the services are rendered

nd conditions of the contract,
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Dividend tncome
Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date.

Other Charges related to Operation

The Company collect other charges i.e. login fee, documentation ‘charges, overdue interest, Cheque bounce charges,
prepayment charges, conversion charges, document retrieval charges, Foreclosure charges etc from all the borrowers
based on event, and recognise this income on collection basis.

Miscellaneous income
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the ultimate realization/ Coﬂecl;ion

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and/or construction of a qualifying asset, are capitalized duting
the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. A qualifying asset
is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as incurred basis the effective interest rate method.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the
ones recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance
with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit
becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of

- MAT credit entitlement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid

during the specified period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets on unrealised
tax loss are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss will be utilised against future taxable
income. This is assessed based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-
taxable income and expenses and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable

profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term empioyee benefits including sala,tics short term compensated absences (suc hasa pmd annual leavc} where
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employees render the related services and non-monetary benefits for current employees are estimated and measured
on an undiscounted basis.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans as -
under:

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund, pension fund and employees state insurance
scheme. The contribution made by the Company in respect of these plans aré charged to the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Where
in the employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to employee's length of service and last drawa salary.
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference to
the employee’s length of service and final salary. The legal obligation for any benefits remains with the Company,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been set aside. The liability recognised in the statement
of financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the
reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of
independent actuaries. Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in
other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of long-
term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to avail after
one year from the Balance Sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses aﬁsing from past
experience and changes in actuarial assm‘nptlons are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such

gains or losses are determined.

Shate based payments

Share based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Satin Creditcare Network Limited (‘Parent
Company”) Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs). The employee benefits expense is measured using the fair value
of the employee stock options and is recognised over vesting period with a corresponding increase in equity. The
vesting period is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. On the exercise of the
employee stock options, the employees of the Company will be allotted Parent Company’s equity shares.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reportmg date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is

estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

\yf
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An impairment loss is recognised if the catrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss recognized in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a prorata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior periods, the Company
reviews at reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or rio longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal
is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

i) Impairment of financial assets
Loan assets

The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition
as summarised below:

¢ A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is classified in ‘Stage 1° and has its credit
risk continuously monitored by the Company i.e. the default in repayment is within the range of 0 to 30 days.

e [f a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is
moved to ‘Stage 2’ but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired i.e. the default in repayment is within the range
of 31 to 90 days.

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument is then moved to Stage 3’ i.e. the default
in repayment is more than 90 days.

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage
2 and Stage 3 loan assets ECL is the product of the Probability of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given

Default, defined as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation
(as per “Definition of default and credit-impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (12 months PD), or over

the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Loss Given Default (LGD) — LGD represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted
exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and preference of claim and ava.zlabﬂlry of collateral or other
credit support.

Exposure at Default (EAD) — EAD is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of
default. For a revolving commitment, the Company includes the cusrent drawn balance plus any further amount that
is expected to be drawn up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

Forward-looking economic information (including management overlay) is included in determining the 12-month and
lifeime PD, EAD and LGD. The assumptions underlying the expected credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an
ongoing basis.

Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased

significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses.
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asset as'at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurting on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that
is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk
on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand (including imprest), demand deposits and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of.cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value,
Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on
the available information.

Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable pesiod of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an
assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain
that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company
considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the
termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to the company’s operations taking into account
the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and
future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that no changes are required to lease period relatng to the
existing lease contracts.

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for building for office premises. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

() the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease

and

- (iif)the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less
(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the exclusive options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lea
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial dicg
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lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term

and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the couatry of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
cortesponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.
The Company as a lessor

The company does not have any leases as a lessor.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the prospective method and has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and corresponding right of use asset at the same value.
Due to the prospective method applied, the comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 will continue
to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our financial statements for year ended March 31,
2019.

Leases in which the lessor does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the
lessee are classified as operating leases. Lease rental are charged to statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
except where scheduled increase in rent compensates the lessor for expected inflationary costs.

I) Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the
time value of money is material. '

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

e Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or :

® Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related
asset is disclosed.

m) Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measnrement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party tothe-contractual

measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
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Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measurement

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost — a financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

®  The asset is Held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

»  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
mnterest rate (EIR) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acqulsmon and fees or costs
that are an mtegml part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments in mutual funds — Investments in mutual funds are measured at fair value through profit and
loss (FVIPL).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowance using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing
component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all financial assets with contractual cash flows
other than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The
amount of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition of financial assels

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. Further, if the Company has not
retained control, it shall also derecognise the financial asset and recognise separately as assets or liabilities any rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subreguent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

De-rocognition of financial liabilitier
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is dischatged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the assets and sette the liabilities simultaneously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events including a bonus

. 1ssue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss (interest and other finance cost
associated) for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

The Company identifies segment basis the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments
are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts
are regularly by the executive management (‘chief operating decision maker’) in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are line with the accounting
policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
identified to segments on the basis of their relationship with the operating activities of the segment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments and accordingly identified as the chief operating decision maler.
Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, which are common to the enterprise as 2 whole and are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis, have been treated as "unallocated revenues/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities", as the case

may be.
Share issue expenses

All the expenses pertaining to issue of equity share capital are adjusted against the Securities Premium Account to the
extent any balance is available for utilisation in securities premium account.

Guarantee contracts

Firstloss default guarantee contracts are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse
the bank and financial institution for a loss, it incurs because a specified customer fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a loan contracts or due to negligence or deficiency of service or non-observance, by
the Company, of stipulations and conditions contained in the agreement with respective business partners. Such
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions, for whom the Company acts as ‘Business Correspondent’.

On each reporting date, liabilities against these guarantee contracts are measured and recognised in books as per the
terms of agreements and any subsequent mutual consent with respective business partners.

Further, the maximum liability against these guarantee contracts are restricted to the cash outflow agreed in the
agreements with respective business partners.
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Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the mlated disclosures.
Actual results may differ from these equmareq
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Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impaitment of
assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable

amount of the assets.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL’) — The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost requires use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and
credit behaviour (e.g. likelihood of customers defanlting and resulting losses). The Company makes significant
judgements with regard to the following while assessing expected credit loss:

¢ Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

¢ [Dstablishing the number and relatve weightings of forward-looking scenatios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

e  Hstablishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the
Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual
future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuaton techniques to determine the fair value of financial
instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptons
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in
these estimates relate to technical and economic obf-'-olescence that may change the utility of assets.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases.
Variation in these assumptions may Slgmﬁcanﬂy impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

’ (This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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Mote 4: Cagh and cash equivalenis

Particulars Azt fht
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Babee with banks in current aceounts 2407.85 1.241.69
Cash in hand 35224 GOOLTR
Diposits with onginal maceity of less than 3 months 3.245.75 364330
Total of cash and cash equivalents 6,005.84 5.485.86
———==
Nore: There are na repatmntion rostrctions with cespect (o cash and csh equivalents a5 at the end of the reporting yene and comparative yeas,
Mote 5:Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Partgulars ad it At
Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Term deposits for temmining aturity of 3 months or Jess -
Term deposits with vemumning maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months m
Tenn deposits having remaining maturity of more than | yeas .
Balante with Tanks and Goancial insetutions w che extent held a5 maegn money deposits aganst borewings and
gunrantees/against hest loss/ second loss deflt puaranives 2,690,598 3,059,690
Total 2.692.99 3.959.69
Maote 6: Trade receivables (at amortised cost)
Particulars et Apat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade Receivables
Receivables considered good - unseeured*® 17.72 35704
Lese Provision for imparement on nade recvivables & -
17.72 337.64
(i1} Onhwer Receivables
Onther Recevalbiles i
Less: Provision for Impaiement on other receivables -
Total 17.72 33704
*Based on past history of receivables, Management considered Nil allowances rowands ceedit losses,
Nowe 7: Loan portfolio (at amortised cost)
As at As at
Farticulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Paortfolio loans
Seeured 4915346 2002740
Unisoeured 300043 383366
Less Impanment loss allowanee {1,333.04) (6G6H.Be)
50,819.95 52.192,22
Toul 50.819.95 | 32,192.22
=
(i} Secured by propeny 48,153.05 28,777.38
() Secured by book debes 1,0000.41 asn02
(1) Unisecired 300043 3833606
Tatal - Gross 52,153.80 32.861.06
Lass: Tmpatemnent loss allowanee (1,333.94) (668 44)
Toral - Net 50,819.95 3219222
Louns in India
(i) Mubilic Seeror = -
(if) Others 5215380 S2R61.016
Total - Gross 52,153.89 3286006
Less: Impaicment koss allowanee [1,333.04) (605, H4)
Total - Net 50,819.95 32,192.22
Thi: abave amaunt snchides this interest scerued and exchwde wiamortsed Inan procossing fees, 95 follows:
Particulars
nterest necured 943,27 567.88
Uramiortised loan processing foe B30, 24 512.01

¥ There are np loans or sdvanect repapable on demand or without specifyng any toems oe period of repuyment of the rekite] partics,
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Note 8: Other financial assets (at amortised cost)

As at Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Seeurity depasits (unsecured, consdesed good) 28.15 24.53
Statf advance and other recoverble .86 35.06
Other recoverabic 1,147.93 71442
Unbilled revenue 1.58 121.04
1,187.52 B35
MNaote 9: Carrent tx asscts {net)
As at Asar
Particul
g March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advanee income-tax and TS receivable 196,52 92373
1.096.52 923.73
Note 10: Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulurs RS AT
Margh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asscts:
() Provision for Employee benefits 4119 339
B Depreciation and amortisaton 3R.56 33,74
(&) Careied Forward Losses - an4
{c) Impact of IndAs 116 6.8 300
{8 Allowasice For expected coedit Joss 513.60 607,29
(&) Mimmum altersate ty ceedin entitlement 34715 372,85
(hl Measurement of Boancial assets and financial labilines s amortsed cost 0,54 1,000
948.16 1L104.27
Tax effect of items constituting deforred tax linbilities: 3
(0 Prowvision far 3601) (vis 11.07 1328
) (i)
107 13.28
Deferred tax assers/ {liabilities) (ner) 037.09 L,0490,99
Notes:
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilitics) for period ended March 31, 2025
T Recognised in other Recognised in Kt
Particulars March 31, 2024 CDI'I'l.]'HChcmil'\'t seatement of profit Macch 31, 2025
income and loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax asscis:
(a) Prowigion for Employes henefits 3398 T.21 41.19
b} Depreciation and amorssation 33.74 442 38.56
(€) Careied Forward Losscs 334 (53.41) ! -
(d) Impace of Indis 118 : 3.00 308 (T
[€) Prowision for fiest Joss default guanntes 607.29 (93.60) 513.60
() Minimum alterate tx coedit entitlement 372485 (25.70% 34715
() Mensarement of Anancial assets and foancil labilitics st amortised eost D00 0,58 1.5
1,104.27 (156.12) 945.16
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities:
(h) Provision for 36(1)viia) 15.28 [=21) 1107
13.28 (2.21) 1107
Nee deferred tax assct 1,090.99 (153.90) 937.09
(i) Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilitics) for year ended March 31, 2024: a
Rt Recognised in other Rm;ogn iscd in Aga
Particulars March 31, 2025 cumn_prchcnsnrc statement of profit March 31, 2024
ineome and loss
Tax effect of items constituting deferred rax assets:
{4} Prowvision for Employee benclis 3346 1.5 {0.72) 33.08
() Depeeciation and amoctisation 0.58 d . 416 3374
{e) Carvied Forward Losses 302.69 C 3 (240.28) 334
() lmpact of lndAs 116 2.87 - .14 300
() Prowision for first koss defult puarntee 55829 - T2.00 7.2
(B Minmmm dltemnte tix credit entidement a3 45 = 15040 T2
(@) Measurement of Bnaneial assers and Gnancial labilites e amoensed cost 312 . (3.17) (401
1,129.46 1.25 (26.42) 1,104.27
Tax effect of items constinpting deferred tax liabilities:
() Peovision for 36(1){via) 501 L 737 1338
591 - 7.37 13.28
Met deferred tax assee 1,123.55 1.25 (33.79)




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

11 Property, plant and equipment

Gross Block Computer Office Furnitare & Vehicle  Rightof use Total
equipment Equipment Fixtures asset
Balance as at March 31, 2023 372.48 79.50 121.55 27.52 458,03 1,059.08
Aquired through business - -
Additions 39.47 15.15 2384 2049 179.16 27810
Disposals (89.45) (21.26) (3344} (27.52) {103.75) (275.92)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 322,50 - 73.39 11145 20,49 533.44 1,061.26
Additions : 3877 7107 139.01 23.50 276.16 549.11
Disposals (88.72) (11.53) (21.23) (20.49) (386.35) (528.31)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 272.55 132,93 229.83 23.50 423.25 1,082.06
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 314.53 60.96 70.74 9.91 303.82 759.97
Depreciation charge for the year 46.55 11.54 17.00 308 75.18 153,34
Adjustment on account of disposals (81.17} (18.68) (23.03) {10122 (50.93) (154043
Balance as at March 31, 2024 279.91 53.82 64.71 2.7 328.07 729.28
Depreciation charpe for the period 2838 2244 29.03 1217 95,16 185.19
Adjustment on account of disposals [B2.24) (9.76) {15.90) (530 {318.63) (434.53)
Balance as at March 31, 2025 226.05 66.50 77.84 6.64 102.60 479.65
Net block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 42.59 1937 46.74 17.72 205.37 331.98
Balance as at March 31, 2025 46.50 66.43 151.99 16.86 320.65 G241
12 Intangible asscts

Gross Block Software*® Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 30.32 30.32
Aquired through business
combination
Adeditions 076 0.76
Adjustments during the year = -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 31.08 31.08
Additions ’ 572 572
Dispasals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 36.80 36.80
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2023 25.62 25.62
Aquired through business
combination
Depreciaton charge 310 310
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 28.72 28.72
Depreciation charge 270 270
Disposals - -
Balanee as at March 31, 2025 31.42 31.42
MNet block
Balance as at March 31, 2024 23 236
Balance as at March 31, 2025 5.38 5.38
* Operating system for computers,

12A Capital Works-in-Progress
Particulars, CcCwWIP Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 - -
Addition 2.21 9.21
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 9,21 9.21
Addition . -
Disposals (9.21) (9.21)

Balanee as at March 31, 2025




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Motes to the financial seatements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in 2 m lakhs, unless stated othenwise)

Note 13; Other non-finanecial assets

Particulars v ioling —‘
: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Aubvances recoveenble in eash or m kind or for value to be received 66.16 038
Prepaid expenses . Ta3.61 49554
82077 575.09
Nate 14: Trade payable
. As at As e
PRI March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trude Payables
(@) torl cutstinding dues of MSMEs 4317 13.78
(@) ol outstanding dues of erediters other than MSMEs 19904 11328
24311 127.06
Other Payables
(0 wal cutstanding ducs of MSMEs
(i) wotal ootstanding dues of eeediroes other than MSM s -
Total 243.11 127.06
— ]
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on 315t March,2025
Particulars Oustanding for following periods from duc date of payment
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years
{1} MSME #3.17 = - *
i) Others 193.15 172 1.67 341
(i) Drspited dues — MSME ) 4 -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others |
v} Unballed dugs = A =
Total 236.31 172 167, 341
Trade Pavables ageing schedule as on 31st March, 2024
Particularg O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1year | 1-2 years '2-3 Yoars More than 3 vears
D) MSME 13.78 - - -
{it) Orhers ' 102,77 411 208 4.33
(i) Disputed docs — MAME . -
(iv] Disputed dues = Others - -
() Unbillec dues B - - -
Total 116.54) 411 2408 4.33|
#: There ane no eases where oo due date of payment is specified,
fE#k: There is no cases of tmnsactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Aet, 2013 or seetion 360 of Companics et 1956,
Note 15: Debt securitics (at amortised cost)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 51, 2024
Non-convertlile delenres ROTH0 195213
B,974.00 1,952.13
Db securities in Indin 897449 1,952.13
Debt securities putside Ingia B
£.074.09 1.952.13
Unamortised Processing Fees 16554 G245
Accrued Interest Tduz 1-h48
Particulars Terms of Repayment As ar Asar
Marcl 31, 2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Non=convertible debentures (secured)
LO00 (March 31, 224 20000, @010BSY, oued, lsted, fully paid up, senior, secured, rodeermable, meable, non-]
ceanvertible dabenures of fce \.'Ullli,' af T 1,000,600 cach, 'l'l.un:ql.m.' of alloomenr is March 0d, 2024, Redeemabile at par on Fobiod T
Seeurud by way of hypothecation of first tanking, exclusive and comtinying charge oo ook debt which shal he Avgst (14, 2025 ik ARt
nwintined ot 105% of principal induding intorest acerued amount of the debentres sutsemding)
2500 (Murch 31, 2024: Nel), (@] 10.85%, matecl, listed, fully nid up, senior, seoured, redeemable, feeble, non
convertible debenmres of Fice vilue of |.1?|L[Iljlll cach, The date ol':s.llul'n:lcnrisjunc 28, 2024. Redeesmable 2t par on SEigmg
(Secured by way of hypothecation of first snking, exclugive and contmuing charge on book delst which shall bie Juune 26, 2026 %318,
meineined ar 105% of principal meluding interest acerued amount of the debenrures oustanding,)
1999 (March 31, 2024 Nil), @I0A0%, catell, lsted, flly paid up, senior, seoured, redeemable, moable, non-
eonvertible debenuees of fice value of T 1,00,000 sch, The dare of allotment is Augsast 30, 2024, Ridoemable a6 jar on| o
(Secured Ly way of hypotheeation of frse ranking, exelisive snd continuing chame en book debt which dhall bl Mgt 30, 2026 e
muntained ab 105% of principal ncluding inrerest acerued amount of the debennmes outstanding:)
2500 (Wearch: 31, 2004: NiT), @IH0E0%, mied, lsed, fully paicl up, senior, secured, redeemable, meable, nond
sonvertible debenmnires of Fce valuz af 400,000 cach, “The diste of allotment is Seprember 20, 2024, Rudeermible ar par on 2 dgtos
[Beeuted by way of hypothecation of first ranking, exclusive and continulng chagge on book debt which shall belSeptamber 20, 2026 s
anisiined At 105% of principal inclading interest acomued amount of the debentures oustanding)

i
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025 " “
[!‘:H amounts i ¥ in lakhs, unless seated otherwise)

Mate 16: Borwwmg.s {(other than debt securitics)

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Teorm koans From bank (At amornsed Cost)

Lecuredn 270059 3.230.47

Wnseeured -
Term Joans From francial instdmtbons(At amerised Cosr)

SecureditsH 19.988.17 16,008,1%
Securimation () 11,845.58 394220
Listne feom eebued parties (unseenined) - -
Lease Tabilicy 351.12 218.33

34,885.46 23,459.39
Hurm-ing-s in Inclia 3488540 23,439,309
Barrowings outside ndia - -
34,585.46 23,450.39
# Secured by way of Hypathecation of honk debr te the extent of 123% of the value of the loan outstanding and Seoured by way of Hypathecaton of Vehicles,
At Seoured by way of Hypotheeasion of bock debr to the aerent of 100% 1o 133% of the value of the loan outstanding,
#ti: Theee are no instances where the company has not used the barrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific puepase fior which it was taken at the bofnce sheet dane.
#HHOwrerly rotuend of satemente flid by the coompany wirk hunks or Rnancil imssnrions ane in aereementwith the boks of aceount.
Unamortised Processing Fees 37718 187.37]
Acerued Interest 1848.70 117.68]
Reconcilistion of liabilitics arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company’s liabilitics arising from financing acrivities can be classified as follows:
Pasticulars Debr securities Oither Borrowings mu":ﬁ::“hmd Total
March 31, 2023 553.00 16,332.63 16922 17,0154.94
Adoprion of Ind A3 116 - 179.16 16
Caeh flows: .
- Repayment {50000 {14, B4066) 91,843 {15.432,50)
- Procteds front overdmft Fcility B B -
= Proceeds other than overdraft faciliny 200,00 21,647.23 - 2364723
- Chthers 3861 160 = 25.99
Maon ensh: -
- Canversion of Optionally Convernble, Redeesmable Preference Shares - - -
- Poreign exchange . = -
« Amaortisation of upfront fees and others G235 (2.0 - (124,57}
= Othiees 96,12 (38.02) 58,10
March 31, 2024 1,952.13 23,240.86 218,52 2541151
Adopton of Ind AS 116 . - - 276,16 270.16
Cagh flows: -
- Repayment (15,644.068 {104.57) (15,749.28)
- Peosieds from evendeft facility . - - .
= Proceeds other than ovendeaft feility 6,500,000 26,956.95 3305595
= Others 125,05 g Kt = 196.97
Mon cashi -
- Converaon of Opnonilly Convertible, Redecmable Profeeence Shares - -
- Forelgn exchange 2 - -
- Amorrsanion of upfrone fees and others <RI (FLET) - {19250
- Others 3894 (38,94
Murch 31, 2025 807400 34,554.34 35112 43,359.55
Note 17: Other financial liabilitics
Particulars At at v
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest accrued but not due on Long Teon Bomowings - -
First loss defwlt puasares kabalin® d —
Oher payable 17.36 7.534
Expenses payable 38378 21578
Toeal 30014 24312




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Allamounis i T m hkhs, unless smied otherwisg)

Note 18: Provisions

: As at As ar
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision (o compensated alsences 99,78 99.82
Prowvision for grmmity 48,29 2232
Proasion for first loss default puaranice 51254 L5108
Total 66061 1,6536.22
e |
*-Company has made proviston on acrcunt of compensated absences based on Expest Opinion and Actwril Valuation considenny Basic Salaey of eniplogees.
Mote 19: Other non-financial liahiliies
Pardlculics As at As ac
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statuecry dues payable 106,05 108.15
Toral 106.05 108.15




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Nuotes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts i T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

20 Equity share capiml As oo As at

Authorised equity share capital

L5,H0,00.000 (31 March 2024: 13,8000,000) Equity shares of 310 each 15,800,00 1580000
15,800, 00 15,800.00

Issued and subseribed !

15,75,57,892 (31 March 2024: 15,7557, 892) Equity shares of 210 cach 15.755.79 15.755.79
15,755.79 15,755.79

Paid up equity share capital

15,75,57,892 (31 March 2024: 15.75,37,802) Fquity shares of 210 each 15.755.79 15,755.79
15,755.7% 15,755.79

i} Rights, preferences and restrictions aitached o equity shares:

e company his anly one cliss of cquity shircs having par fee value of 210 per e, Hach equity sharcholder is eligihle foe ane vote pee shase Teld. Any dividend, if propesed by the Board of Dircetms,
i subsject 1o the approval of sharchokdees, Dividend deckared and paid would be in Indian nipees. Dividends are swlsject to eorponie dividend g, In the event of iquidation of the Company, the holders of
euuity share will be enttled 1o receive remaiming assers of the Company, after disisibution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion o the nwmber of equity shares held by e
shareholden:.

ii) Reconciliston of equity shares sutstanding at reporting year end daie Mo. of shilres 2 Mao. of shares b
Equity sliire eapital of T 10 cach fully paid up Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the buginaing of the yeac 15,75.57,892 15,755.79 14,05,14,859 1415149
Aded: Tssued during the year - - 1. 7043033 17104340
Balance at ithe end of the year 15,75,57,892 15,755.79 15,75,57,892 15,755.79
iif} Equity shares held by holding,/ promoter company us at balance sheet dare:
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
“ ehange
Y change during during the
Equity share capital of ¥ 10 each fully paid up No. of shares % holding the year No.of shares % holding  year
Satin Crediteare Network Limited 15.75.57.802 10601, L0 157557802 10000 0.00%
15,75,57, 892 108.00% 0.00% 15,75,57,892 100.00% 0,040
iv) Sharcholders holding more than 5% of shares of the Company as at balance sheet date:
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Equity share capital of % 10 each fully paid up Mo. of shares Y holding Mo of shares . holding
Satin Crediteare Network Limied ' 15.75.57,892 LN 15.75,57.892 10
15,75,57,892 10000 15,75,57,892 100.080%

The Company has neither issued equity sharcs pursuant 10 comract witheut payment being received in cash or any honus shares nor bas there been any buy-back of shares in the
curreint year and five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date except pursuant to schente of amalgamation as mentioned above.

¥)




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

21 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings (313.78) (910.41)
Statutory reserves (@ 561.80 412.74
Amalgamation reserve 72525 725.23
Securties Premium 2,295.70 2,295.70
Total Other Equity 3,268.95 2,523.26

@ Statutory reserves
The reserve is created as per the provision of Section 45(IC) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, This is a restricted rescove

and no appropriation can be made from this reserve fund except for the purpose as may be prescrbed by Reserve Bank of

India.

Particulars Amount (Rs. In lac)
Net assets received 4,526.71
Equity share capital (as per approved scheme) ~ 3,801.49
Amalgamation Reserve \ - 72535

\



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the penod ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in T in lakhs, ualess staned otherwise)

Note 22: Inrerest Income (measured at amortised cost)

Particulars For the period ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
[nterest income on pottfolio loans G090,08 6,223.68
luterest income on deposits 258,51 32382
10,245.59 6,547.50

Naote 23; Fees and commission income

For the period ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income from BC opertions and other support services 1,457.35 4,869.04
Documenmoon charpes 415.77 23524
Login Fee Income 255,42 165.03
2,129.04 5,289.31
E—— =)

Note 24: Net gain on fair value changes

Faor the period ended

Faor the vear énded

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments
at fair value through profit or ldss
= Mutual Funds 96.17 64.23
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 96.17 64.23
Fair Value Changes: -
-Realised 96,17 64.25
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 96.17 64.23

Note 25;: Orther Income

For the period ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Miscellancous income 163.03 206.01
Interest income oo security deposits 1.6 0.66
Net gain on derecopnition of property, plant and equipment 450 14.47
Foreclosure charges received 2143 18.13
190.91 239.47
Note 26: Finance cost (on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)
Parti For the period ended For the vear ended
articulars *
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on borrowings
Interest on borrowngs other than debt seeuritics 2,529.86 21W7.02
Intercst on debt sceuntics T36.58 1561
Interest on borrowings from bank ' 387,14 243.75
Other inferest expenses 306,48 13837
Interest expense on lease liabilig 46,86 28.88
4,007.32 2,643.63
Note 27: Impairment on financial instruments (on financial assets measured at amortised cost)
3 For the period ended Far the vear ended
Particulars o
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Allowanee for expected credit loss 665,160 92.15
Partfolio loans written off 663,56 266.08

1,328.66




SATIN FINSERY LIMITED

Motes to the financial statemenis for the period ended Mareh 31, 2025

(ALl emounts i in lakbs, unless stated othenwise)

MNote 28: Emplovee benefit expenses

; Far the period ended For the year ended
Particulars .
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Saluries, wages and bonus 4,345.24 260,06
Contribution to provident and other funds 3048.12 432.19
Staff welbare EXpenses G300 G309
4,717.02 5,755.34

Note 29: Depreciation and amortization expensc

For the period ended

For the year ended

Particulars : ;
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 9203 7816
Amartisation on intangible assels 270 .10
Amortisation on right of use asscts 9316 75.18
187.89 156.44
Mote 30: Other cxpenses
Partivalirs For the period ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bank chirges ki 59.80
Rent 12728 197.46
Treavelling and conveyance 31936 269.40
Repair and maintinance 6.34 1282
Printing and stationery 4104 T8.83
Communication cost 5353 7245
Insueance charges 2391 20.18
Saftware & I'T' support expenses 108417 117.97
Rates and raxes 11.99 34.55
Eleetvicity charges 18,74 2542
Auditor’s semuneration® 29,70 32.20
Business promotion 025 . 670
Commission paid* 47.74 62,53
Loan Processing Charges 340,12 244.24
Legal and professional chacges 158.53 61.32
Dircctor sitting fecs T63 534
Balance wiite off 3062 65.62
Office expenses 16559 157.29
Write off aguinst first loss default guarantec 861 T81.54
First loss default guarantee expenscs -1,001.55 166.63
Posrage & eouricr 33.27 2791
Miscellaneous expenscs 2 13.75
1,362.52 2,523.35
Naote*: Auditors remuneration includes payments as follows:
(a} Statutorcy audic 10,0
(&) Tax audit 3.50
{c} Cemification fee md other services 16.20
Taotal 29.70




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(AN amounts in 2 in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

MNote 16A: Terms of principal repayment of Debt Securities & Other Borrowings as at March 31, 2025

Due within 1 year Due between L to 2 Due between 2 to 3 Due beyond 3 Years Total
Original marurity No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount
of loan L o installme ins tallmen installmen installment
nes s s 3
Belowa 9.00% 24 7.00 24 7.69 10 2,53} - 18.22
M Y% to 12% 105 4,349.28 55 5,718.96 4 359,19 - - 14,427.33
anthly
} E2.01" o 15" ' 427 9,660.81 260 7.224.69 103 2,746.29 19,631.98
Abowe 13%u = - . = =
Below 9.00% - - - . - = = =
Quarterly 9% 1o 12% - - = = - - -
12.01% to 15% 4 363.64 2 181.74 - - - 545.38
9% to 12% - 1 2,000 3 6,999 - - - 5,999.00
Bullet . 12.01% to 15% - - - - -
Above 15% - - - - - - - = =
Total 561 20,350.74 344 20,131.98 17 3,109.10 - - 43,621.82
Terms of principal repavment of Deht Securities & Other Borrowings as at M arch 31, 2024
QOriginal maturity | Interest rate Due within 1 year Due between 1 1o 2 Due between 2 to 3 Due beyond 3 Years Total
of loan ‘No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount No. of Amount
installme installmen installmen installment
nts s ts §
Below 9.00% 12 5.87 12 6,4 11 .37 - 158.64
|Monthly 2%t 12% 72 2.813.42 30 244812 11 808,52 - - 6,070.06
12,01 % to 15% 370 7,194.53 266 5,397.21 95 2,490,30 6 142,00 15,224.04
Above 15% 24 476,65 25 528,54 - - - = 1,005.19
Quarterly 1201 to 15%% 6 44697 4 363064 2 181.82 - - 992.42
B 12.01% to 155 - - 1 2,000.00 - - 1 0.20 2,000.20
ullet
Abeve 15% - = Z . o " ~ = =
Total 484 10,937.44 358 10,743.91 119 3,487.00 ) 142.20 25,310.56




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Mates to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in % in lakhs, unless stated atherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Note 31: Earning per Share
Ner profit/ (Loss) for the year © 74538 514.77
Weighted average number of equity shares for BPS 15,75,57,892 14,04.55,406
Par value per shace (in RS.) 10 10
Baste Barnings per share {in RS.) 0.47 0.34
Nonunal value of equity share (2) 10.00 10.00
Weighted-aveenge number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per share 15,75,57,892 14,94,55,466
Diluted Barnings per share (in RS.) 0.47 0.34
Nate 32: Tax Expense
Current tax, (including taxes earhier years) 159.27 154,04
Minimum altérnate tax credit entitement 3438 (150.400
Deferred tax expensef (credit) 11937 184.21
313.02 188.75

The major components of income tax expense and the reconcilistion of expense based on the domestic cffective tx rate of ar 27.82% and the

reported b expense in profit or loss arc as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 1,058.30 703.52

Ab country’s statutory income tx rate of 27.82% 20442 19572

(March 31, 2024: 27.82%)

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax expense

(1) Tax impact of expenses which i3 non deductible -

(i) Tax impact on items exempt under income tax =

(1) Impact of difference in tax rate on certain items -

{iv) Preliminagy expenses allowed 3 ;

() larlier year taxes . 4.53

(i) Others 18.60 (11.50)
" 313.02 188.75

Nore 33: Leases

The Company has taken vitious office premises under luase armngements, Genelly, the lease teem varies from 11 months o 60 months and {s
renewnble under mutually agreed tems berween lessee and lessor and there i$ no exclusive tight t the company. The company has considered leases
having initial lease wem of upto 12 months as shoet teem Jeases as per para 6 of Ind AS 116 and thivr expenses have been recognised as Rent under
note 3, For all other leases having lease term of mare than 12 months a dght of use asset i recogaised with a corresponding lease hability. The sight
of use awset is disclosed under Property, Plane and Equipement and lease liability is disclosed under Burrowings. Further disclosures as on March 31,

2025 arc as follows:

1 The table below describes the natuce of the Company's leasing aetivitics by type of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet

Right of use asset Office Premises

Parti For the vear ended For the year ended
articulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Toral number of leases r 117
Mumber of leases comsidered as short term leases 3n 51
No, of apght-of use assets leased 34 36
Range of remaining term Upto 54 months Lipto 57 months
Averape remaining lease teem 41 months 22 months
Mo, of leases with extension options 0 0
Mo of leases with purchasc optons [ 0
No. of leases with variable payments linked to an ndex 1 0
No. of leases with tecmination options 70 17
2 Additional informaton on the nght-of-use assets by class of assets i as follows:
Particulars R.Igh of use asser
Office Premises
Carrving amount as on March 31, 2024 5T
Addition 276,16
Depreciation 9310
Deletion 67.72
Carrving smount as on March 31, 2025 32066
3 Bifurcation of Lease labilices in eurrent and non current as follows:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current T5.50 57.50
Non-current 275,55 161.03
Total 35112 218.53
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At 31 March 2025 the Cumpau;\' do nat have any comimitled lesses which had not yet commenced,

The undiscoured maruety analysis of lease linbilities at March 31, 2025 s s [ollows:

Finance charges

Particulars Lease payments Net present values
Within 1 year 118.21 4262 75.59
1-2 yeqrs 116.67 31.82 #4.65
25 vears 115.62 19.61 9601
3-4 vears 8722 744 T79.78
4-5 yeares 15.61 072 14.59
Taotal 453.33 102.21 35112

The undiscounted maturity analysis of lease liabilites at 31 March 2024 &5 as follows:

Particulars Lease payments Finance charges Net present values
Wiathin 1 year B1.65 24.14 57.50

1-2 years 67.96 17.26 50,71

2-3 years 56,44 11.26 45.18
3-4 vears 55.54 5.02 50.82
4-5 vears | 4,66 (1.54 1432
Totul 276.75 58.22 218.53

The Company has elected not o recopnise a lease Tability for shart term leases (leases of expeeted torm of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value
assets. Payments made under such lenses are expensed on a steaight-line basis. [n addition, eeetain varable lewse payments are not permitied to be
recoynised as lease labilibes and are expensed as incurred The Company does nor fce a significant liquidity risk with regand o its lease habilitics as the
cutrent assers are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease linbilities a5 and when they &l due,

The expense relating to payments not incuded in the measurement of the lease liability is 15 follows:

Operating leases

The Company has taken on lease certain assets under opeeating lease arrangements. The conteactual Ritune minimum lease payment obligation i

respect of thoese leases are as under:

Office T:rerlniscs

Particulars . March 31, 2025 . March 31, 2024
Short term leases 127.28 197.46
Leases of low value asscts -
Warigble lease payments % &
Total 127.28 197.46
Minimum lease ablizutions:
- within one year 75.59 37.50
- Later than ane verr but not Latee than five vears 275.53 161.03
- Later than five years - -
The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 244.91 lakh in March 31, 2025 (Re. 298.57 fakh in March 31, 2024),
‘The fallowing are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 9316 75.18
Intercst expense on lease labilites 4686 28,88
Hxponse relating to shodt-term leases (included in other cxpenses) 137.26 197.46
Expense relaging to leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) ' - =
righle lease payments (included in other expenses) - -
Toral amount recognised in profit or loss 267.30 301.52

The Company has lewse contmcts for office buildings used in its operations, Leases of these buildings generally have lease reems bebween 11 months
and 5 yuars years, The Company’s obligations under its Jeases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets Generally, the Company is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assers. Theee are several lease contracts that include extension and teemination options, which are further
diseussed below.

The Company has seveenl lease conteacts that include extension and teemination options. These options are negotiated by management © provide
Aexilbadity 1w managing the leased-asser portfolio and align wich the Company's business needs. Management uxercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably cestain to be exercised.
The Company does not have any leage contracts that contming variable payments. :
Set out below are the undiscounted potential future rental payments relating to perods following the exercise date of extension and lermination
options that are net included in the lease term:

20235

More than five years Total

Particulars Within five years

Estension options expected not to be exercised (Count)

Terminabion options expected to be exercised (Count) 2

Extension options expected not to be exercised (Amount in Lakhs) -

Teemination options expected 1o be exercised {Amount in Lakhs) -




2024

Particulars

Within five years

Total

Extension options expected not o be exercised (Count)

More than five years

Termination options expected to be exercised {Count)

Extension options expeceed not to be excreised (Amount in Lalths)

Termination optiens expested w be exereised (Amount in Lakhs)

Nate 34: Contingent Liabilities not provided for

No contingent liabilitics as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Nil), listimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account is Nil
{previous year Nil). Other commitments is Nil as on March 31, 2025 (previous year Nil).

34.1  Estumautes

a) Impairmient of financial assets based on expected credit loss model,

Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The clssification and measurement of fnancial assets will be made considering whethee the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and

civcumsiances existing at the date of transiton,

Financial assets is measured wsing effective interest method by assessing its conteactual el flow chacacteristics anly on the basis of fiets and
circumstances existing at the date of teansition and if it is impracticable o assess elements of modificd time value of mosey fe. the use of cffective
utterest method, fuir value of financial asser at the dare of transition shall be the new careying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption

applics for financial liabilities as well.

Applying n requirement is impracticable when the entity cannat apply it after making every rensonable effort 1o do so. 1t is impracticable to apply the

changes reteospeatively if:

) The efficts of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable;
b) The rerrospective application or restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in that period;
The metospective applieation or reteuspeetive resetement requires significant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to distinguish abjectively
mformation about those estimates that existed at thar time,

Note 35: Asset Under Management

The Company is also in the activity of business coreespondent for various banks and NBFCs. The Company provides fisse and sconnd Ioss defaule
guacitees in the form of fsed deposits/guarantees for Assets Under Management as per business correspondent ngreements signed with various

banks and NBFCs.

The institutionwise Assers Under Managementin books of company for business coreespondenee aetivity a5 on March 31, 2005 are as ollows:

Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Name of Parner FDR balance for FDR balance for
s FLDG e FLDG

Yes Bank Led, = » - 52088
RBL Bank Ltd. 1202 8.86 1202 .06
Relipnee Commercial Finpnee Lid, 756.61 193.43 T56.61 179.91
Federal Bank - 145.39 2907.77 245.61
TDFC First Bank Lid. 2367 48 1,300.32 305414 1,382:05
Jana Small Finance Bank Lid. - H380.73 1,132.41
CSH Bank Ltd* % . 1.452.16 #3.02

3,136.11 1,657.01 17,463.43 5.462.82
PR balance includes acerued interest. :

Naote 36: Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Pacticulas As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thercon femaining unpasd to any supplher as at the end of cach
ACCOUNTIT year 4317 13.78

The amount of interest pad by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Aet, 2006 along with the
amounts of the pryment made eo the supplics berond the apponnited day durmp each accownting year,

2006,

The amount of terest dug and payable for the period of delay i making pryment (which ave been paid but
Beyond the appointed day duning the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act,

The amount of interest accoued and renaining unpaid ot the end of ech accounting year.

cxpenditure wder seetion 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

The mmount of fucther interest rumaining due and payable even in succeeding years, wntil such date when the
interest does asabove v actunlly paid to the small enterprise for the purmose of disillowance as a deductible




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
MNotes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

{All amounts in Tin lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 37: Related party disclosures
I aceordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Smndard — 24 the names of the related panics where conteol/ability to cxercise sigmGcant
influence exists, along with the aggregate amount of transactions and year end balances with them as wentifed and certified by the management are

=

[1]

g‘i ven b:]( N

List of related parties and disclosures:

Description of relationship

Mame of related parties

Helding eompany

linterpases over which key managemunt personnel and relatives of such personnel exercise
:&Eg:uﬂt:mr III'IHUI:“]C‘.' '\].'if['l “'l'tl m ‘I'ﬂn!i‘fl‘;ll‘fﬂ'l!i |'l:'l'\.'ﬂ'_ IIL'L‘I\ lII'ILIL'fr:'IkL' n:

Iellow subsidiary companics

koey manngerial pecsonnel and their relatves:

Satin Crediteare Merwork Limived

Satin Neo Dimensions P,

L.

Satin Housing Finance Limited

Satin Technedogies Lirnited

Name of key managerial personnel

Desiznation

Relatives

Mr. H P Singh

Director

M. Satvinder Singh

Mg, Anueeet [T P Singh

Mr. Varun Shankardass

e, Sumit Mulherjee (all May 31, 2023)

Dhrector & C1EO

Mz, Dhreag Tha (e k. Janvary 17, 2025)

[SIEE]

WTD & CEO

er, Bhuvnesh Khanna {oll March 5, 2025 )
My, Arjun [ansal ;

Cliel Fmaneal Ofheer

Mz, Puneet Jolly (nll Decemlber 19, 3023%

Company Secretary

M. Sangam Jaiswal {w.ed, January 17, 2028)

Company Secrerary

Mr. Gurvinder Singh (ull September 11, 2024)

Company Secretary

MName of Directars Designation
M. Sundeep Kumar Mehita Independent Dircerne
Ms, Jyot Ahluwalia Independent Dirvctor

Me, Anil Kumar Kalm

Independent Dirvetor

. Quistanding balances with related parties in ordi

. Deetails of rransactions with related partics carricd put in the ordinary course of business:
Mame of related party Nature of transaction Fm;\:;;f;]:ﬂ?;ﬂnid el Fnl:';:ﬂf;z‘;&dm
Me. H P Smgh Personal Guarantee m'vcn i, 515.400) TH37.50
FFacilitntuim g',hnrbvt_'{ Ineome 1200 12000
Technology sharng seovices cxpense 76.50 D00
Payment of rent foe ofiee space sharing 52.55 51.31
Interest aid 266.6Y
satin Crediteare Network Linvired Inter corporate loan taken 2,700,000
Loan Repaid - G500
Share based pryments 1.57 -
Income from bosiness correspemdents '
operations and support services 1,445.38
st Meo Dimensions i'\'[,,. Lad. L _U“ |r|'.u'l. lilf
Repaymient received aginst laan = 3033
Mr. Sumit Mukheree full May 31, 2023} Remunsration - 17.600
My, Dhieaj Jha faeef [anuary 17, 2025) Remuneration 14.41
Mr. Bhuynesh Khanna (6l Januaey 16, 2025 Remuneration 155.57 3230
M Arun Bansal Remuneration 45,50 27480
e Puneet |olly (il December 19, 2023) Remuneration - 1274
W Snngam Jaiswal fane.l Januaey 17, 2025) Remuneranon 4.36
My Guevinder Siagh (tll Seplember 11, 2024) Remunetaton E.51 328
e Varun Shankardass fw.e.l. December 11, 2024) | Remuneration 12.26 -
Mz Anil Kumar Kalm Siteing Fee 310 1.0
Mr Sundecp Kumar Melim Sitting Foe 2,80 250
Ngs. Jyou Ahluwalia Sitting Fee 1100 .80

nary course of business:

Name of related party Marture of trangaction

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

1.37

Sann Credircare Neowork Linnted Share based payments- Pavable

Marg:

1. Mz, HL 1P Singh, dircctor of the company Ras given peesonal puarsantee for term loan mken from Bank/F1L Outstanding as of March 31, 2025 is

Ra.10,486.75 Lakh {I"[\:uinuﬁ Year: 8,418.24 L4k|1}.

2, During the year, expendhiture of Re. 1.37 Lakh { Previous Year: Nil) has been charged to peefic & loss account in relation to share based payment to
hokling company on account of SO granted 1o KMP under ESOT scheme foomulated by the holding company.

Key management personnel remuneration includes the following expenses: For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 Mirch 31, 2024
Shore-term employes benefies 247,60 9381
[Rost-employment benefits 623 (3.5
Q\]‘wr Tongr rerm bene s 781 (730
Toral remuncration 263.64 8202\

g




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Allamounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stared otherwisc)

Note 38: Employee Benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 19 on Employee Benefit as under :

@)

(ii)

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company has made T 308.12 lakhs (March 31, 2024  432.19 lakhs) contribution in respeet of provident fund and other funds.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, Every employee is entitled o gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gramity Aet,
1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation. The scheme is funded by the Company and is managed by
Life Insurance Corporation of India (“LIC”) and ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Lid. jointly.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary increases

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s lability.
Inctease in salary increase rate assumption in future
valuations will also tnereasce the lability.

[nvestment risk

If Plan is funded then assets liabilivies. mismatch & acrual
invesement eturn on assets lower than the discount rare
assumed ar the last valuation dare can impace dhe liability.

Mscount rate '

Reduetion in discount rate in subsequent valuatons can
merease the plan’s habiliey.

Mortaliey & disabilicy -

Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than
assumed in the valuation can impact the labilities.

Withdrawals

Actual withdmawals proving higher or lower than assumed
withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subscquont
valuations can impact Plan’s Hability.

Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 |

Present value of obligation 94.66 83.06
Ifair value of plan asscts 46.37 60.74
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision {48.29) (22.32)]

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as undern:

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars As at March 31, 2024
Current serviee cost 3475 27.49
Net interest cost /(income) 1.59 4.42
Interest cost on defined bencfit obligation - -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 36.32 31.91
Acruarial {gain) loss recognised during the year 0.56 .49
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other

comprchensive income 36.88 36.40




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

(iii)

(iv)

47

(vi)

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Major categorics of plan asseis (as percentage of total plan assers):

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Present value of defined benefir obligation as at the beginning of year 83.06 118.00
Current service cost 34.73 27.49
[nterest cost 59 8.72
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Bencfits paid (31.76) (70.54)
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation

Acruatial {gain)/loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - 3.81

Actuarial (gain)/loss on arfsing from change in financial assumption 10.60 273

Actuarial (gain)/loss on adsing from experience.adjusement (7.88) (7.15)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear 94.66 83.06

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Ifunds managed by insurer 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%
Movement in the plan asscts recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan asscts at beginaing of year 64.83 58.14
Actual rerurn on plan assests 3.52 2469
Employer's contrbution 9.99 59.00
Benefits paid (31.98) (59.09)
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 46.37 60.74

Acmarial assumptions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Discounting rate
Furure salary tnerease
Rerirement age (years)
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

Werghted average duration

6.94%
6.00%
60.00

H0.00%0

20.00%

10.00%
3.92

T.12%,
4.00%
60.00

40.00%,

20.00%

10.00%
3.63

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012-14)

Gratuity is payable ro the employees on dearh or resignadon or on retirement at the arminment of M]P;,nnnmﬁnu age. To provide for these
eventualities, the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Morrality (2012-14) Uldmare mble.




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in T in lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

(vid)

(viii)

@

(id)

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As ar March 31, 2024

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 94.66 83.06

- Impact due to inercase of 0.50 % (2.89) (213]
- Impact due to deerease of 0.50 % 3.05 226
Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 94.66 83.00

- Impacr due to inerease of (.50 % 307 232
- Impaet due to deerease of 0.50 % {2.93) (2.22)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and henee impact of change due to thesc is not ealeulated.
Sensitivities as to tate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increasce of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not

applicable.

Mauurity profile of defined benefit obligation As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

0 to 1 year 670 10.09
1 to 2 year 8.57 8.96
2 1o 3 year 8.66 833
3t 4 year 9.07 7.81
4 to 5 year .79 6.60
5 to 6 year 8.52 5.23
6 vear onwards 45.35 36.04

Compensated absences (non-funded)

Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Present value of obligatun., 99.78 99.83
air value of plan assets = =
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 99.78 99.82

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Total service cost 54.77 56.21

Netinterest cost on defined benefit obligagon i 5.89

Net actuarial {gain)/loss recognised during the year {3.41) {2.93)
58.47 62.17

Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

(Tt speice bas leen feft biand fntentionaliy)
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MNotes to the financial statements for the peniod ended March 31, 2025
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Note 39: Financial instruments
A Financial assces and labilities

The canying amounts of financial instruments by category are s follows:

Particulars As at Asat
Notes (@ schedule| . o 312005 | March 31,2004
Financial agsets measured at amortised cost
Cash and Cash equivalents 4 6,005.84 544586
Bank balances other than eash and cash equivalents 5 269299 3,950.64
Receivables [ 17.72 33764
Loans 7 . 50,819,985 32,192.22
Secunty deposits & 2815 24.53
Other Mnancml axsars # 1,159.37 87142
Total 60,724.02 42,871.76
Financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost
Payables 14 2431 127,000
Dbt securities 15 8,074,09 1,952.13
Bortowings (other than debe seeuntius) 16 34,534.54 23240080
Other fnancial labilives 17 301,14 243,12
Total 44,052.68 25,563.17

B Fair values hierarchy

The fuir value of financial instuments as refeered o in note (A) above has been dassified into theee citegordes depending on’ the inputs used in the valuation
tud’tniqui:. The hierarchy pves the highest priatity 1o quoted prices in active markets for wentical assets or ibilities [Level 1 mensusements| and lowest peiority to

unobsenvable inputs [Level 3 measurements),

"The calrgirriuas used ane as l'u“niw:g:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments in an active market;
Level 2: Dil'\cl:tl}l' (i.l:. s priocs) ar End.in:cdy (i.c. derived from prices) observable market inpuqs, other than Level 1 inputu; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Company dovs not have any assets measured at fair value at year end.

B.1 Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Fair value of nstruments mensured at amortised cost for which faic value is diselosed s as follows, these faie values ae ealeulated using Level 3 s

As ar Murch 31, 2025

As ar Murch 31, 2024

Particulars

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and Cash cquivalents G,05.84 6,005.84 548580 5,485,856
Bank balances other than eash and cash equivalents 2,692.09 2,692.99 3,959,049 3,950.69
Reeeivebles 17.72 17.72 33704 337.04
Loans 50,819,953 53,070,535 3219232 33,781.65
Seeurity deposits 2815 2815 24.53 24.53
Other financial assets 1,159.37 1,158.37 871,82 871.82
Total 60,724.02 62,974.42 42,5776 44,461.19
Financial linhilities
Payalles 4 24311 243.11 12740 127.06
1Jebt securitios 3 £,0974.00 B074.00 195213 1,952.13
Borrowings (other than debt secunties) 34,534.34 3453434 23,240,806 . 25,240.86
Other finpncial liabilites M4 30114 24312 24312
Total 44,052.68 4H,052.68 25,563.17 25,563.17

The management nssessed that fair values of eash and eash equivalents, other bank balances, trade rescivables, other fnancial nssety, tade payables and other
financial Eabilites approximate their respective carrping smounts largely due o the short-term matuitivs of these instruments. The fair value of the Faancial
assets and liallivies is included at the amount at which the instrumene could Be exchanged in @ eureent trnsaction between willing partics, other than in a forced
or liguidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fir values:

(i) Long-term fxed-eate reeeivaliles are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest mtes, ndividual eredivworthiness of the eustamer and other

market risk fetors,

{if) The fair values of the Company’s fixed interest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted eash fows (TXCFY) method, using discount
rate that reflects the issuer's borowing mte as at the end of the reporting period. The own nen-perfoimance sk as ar March 31, 2025 was assessed to be

insignificant

(i) The Fat values of the Company fixed interest-hearing debt securities, borrowings and subordinalted Babilities are determined by applying discounted cash flows
{CF) method, using discount eate that relleets the issuer's borrowing rate a8 at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31,
i B FpoCung pe i

2025 was assessed 1o be msignificant,
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
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Note 40: Financial risk management

]

A)

a)

Rigk Management

The Company’s activitics expose it 1o market risk, liquidity nsk and cvedit sk The Company's board of directors has overnll tesponsibility for the esmblishment
and aversight of the Company rsk management frimework. The Company's tisk are managed by a treasury department under policies appeoved by the baard of
directons. The board of directors provides written principles for overall sk management. This nete explaing the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to
and how the entity manages the nsk and the related impact in the Grancial statements,

Risle Exposure ansing from Meas Management
Credit sk Cash and  ensh equivalents, loans|Ageing analysis,  [Bank deposits,|
financial assers measured at umortised f diversilfication  of]
cost. > asset  base,  credit
limits and collateral,
Liquidity sisk Bormowings, debi securities,| Rolling  cash  flow]Availability aff
subordinated  liabiies, and  other|forecasts. cormomitted  enodi]
finaneial labilizes, lines and borrowing|
facilitics.
Marlser risk - intevest rre Borrowings,  cebt  securities  ancd] Sensitivity analysis, [Negotaton of]
subordinated labilities at variable mtes, teoms  that  reflect
the market factors.
Markhet risk - securiry price Tivestments in cquity scouribics, mutual Sensitivily unalyss | Divenufication of
funds, certificare of deposits and commercial portiutio, with foous
papers on strategic
HveEiments

The Company’s risk management is earmed our under the policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, mterest mte sk, credic sisk and investment of excess liquidity.

Credit risk

Credit risk s the risk that a counterparty (ails w0 dischange its obligacion w the Company, The Compang's exposure to eredit fisk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash equivalents, loan assests, and other financial assets measured at amontised cost The Company conumuously menitors defults of customens and other
counterpasties and incorporates this information inte its credit risk conteols,

Credit risk management

The Company assesses and mannges credit sk based on internal eredit mting systemn, Intemal credic mting is pecformed foe each class of fnancial instruments
with different chamcteristics, The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of Fnancil assers based on the assumptions, inputs and factors
specific to the class of Anancial assets.

M Low eredit sk oh Faneil reporting dage

@) Moderee ceedit risk

{ni) [igh credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based an the following:

Asset Company Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Lo crudit risk Cash and cash equivalents, other bank |12 month expeeted eredit loss
balances, investments, loans and other
financial asscts

Moderate credit risk ' Loans, teade reecivaliles and othee Life time cxpeeted eredit loss or 12
financial assets month expected eredic losy
High erudit vigk Loans and other fnancial assets Life time expected eredit loss fully
provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company opetates, a defwlt on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fils to make payments
within the agreed time period as per conteact. Loss mtes reflecting defaults nre based on actual credit loss experience and considering differunces between current
andl historical cconomic conditions,

Assuts are writien off when there s no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a bormower declaring bankeuptey or a liigation decided against-the Company.
The Company continues to engage with partiss whose balances are written off and arempts to enforce repayment. Receverics made are recognised in statement
of profit and loss,

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk®

Particulars Asar As mt
Mareh 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
1l Low credit risk on financial reporting date
Bank Balance in current aceounts & in Fixed Deposits 5,653.60 4.835.08
Bank balances other than above ! 2,602.99 3,950.69
Security deposits 2815 2453
Other financial assets 1,159.37 871.82
Receivables " 17.72 337.64
Loans | 47, 818,09 30,760.54
(i) Moderate eredit risk 1,61567 TIL.87
(i) High credit risk , 271923 1,379.65

* These represent gross earrying values of financial assets, without deduetion for expected credit losses

/



SATIN FINSERY LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in T in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit nisk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank Jepesits is managed by only aceepting highly sated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in
different banks accoss the country. Ratings are monitored proodically.

Receivables
Treade reecivables measured at amortized cost and credit risk related to these are managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets measured at amostized cost mcudes loans and advances to employees, secunty deposits and others, Credit risk eelared o these other
4 financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of suclh amounts continuously,

Loans

Credit visk refated to borrower's are mitigated by considering collateral’s/bank guarantees fletter of credit, from borrowers, The Company dosely monitors the
eredit-worthiness of the borrower's through intemal systems and projeet appraisal process to assess the eredit msk and define eredit limits of borrower, thereby,
limiting the credit ask to pre-caleulated amounts. These processes include a detntled appraisal methodology, identification of nsks and suitable structuring and
eredit risk m.ifq;nl.l‘un mepsurcs. The Compmly assesses inceease in credit nsk o an orl.guing basis for amounts loan recenvables that become past due and default
i considered to have oecurred when amounts seeeivable beeome 30 days past due.

b) Expected credit losses for financial assets other than loans
i) Company provides for expecied credit losses O fnaneial assees by assessing individual fnancial ingtruments for expeettion of any credit lsses:
- For cpsh and cash vquivalents and other bank balances - Sinee the Company deals with anly high-razed banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of
cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and bank dJeposits is cvaluared as very law,

= For investments - Considering the nvestments are in mutual funds, centificate of depsoits and Govemment securities, ecedit visk is considered low.

- For loans comprising security deposits paid - Credie dsk is considerd low because the Company i in possession of the undedying asset.

- For other financial assets - Credit dsk i evaluated based on Company's knowledge of the credit worthiness of those partics and loss allowance is measured for
12 month expecled credit Josses upon initial recognition and provide for hifetime expected credit losses upon significant inerease in eredit dsk. The Company
does not have any cxpccmd loss basdd (mp'llllm'll: m:ﬂgjllﬂ?d on such asscts mm:d:.ms their low credie nsk nature, the rugh thg_ mt;onc:]nllon ofcxpuclcd credit
loss for all sub categories of fnancial assets (pther than loans) are disclased belows

Estimared gross Expecred Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrying amount |  probability of losses net of impairment
March 31, 2025 at defaule default provision
Bank Balance in current accounts 4 i Fixed Deposits 5,653.60 [ - 5,653.60
Bank balances other than above 2,692.99 i - ,692.99
Secunity deposits 2815 ¥ - 2815
Othet Mnancial assets 1,159.37 ¥ = 1,159.37
Receivables 17.72 0% - 17.72

Estimated gross Expected Expected credit | Carrying amount
As at carrying amount | probability of losses net of impairment
Macch 31, 2024 at default default provision
Bank Balanee in current accounts & in Fised Deposits 4 88508 0% 4,885.08
Bank bulwnces other than above 3,959.69 0% - 3,059.69
Svcunty deposits 24.53 0% - 2453
Other financial assets 87182 (e 7182
Reecivaliles 337.064 (%o - 33764

i) The company has off books portfolio of loans which is Leing managed on behalf of prnciple partness. The company has provide fsed dipesits o the pranciple

pactners against fiest loss defaal guarantee. The said fxed Jeposits are lien marked to the concerned principle partnees.,

Thee company records first loss default guarantee liablilty based on contract torms with each principle parmees as on cach eeporting date. Along with fiest loss
default guarantee liabiliey the company also recognzie loss allowance measured on lifetime expected credit loss as on each reporting date.

iii) Expected credit loss for loans

The Company follows a *threc-sige’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
A financial instrument that is not crudit-impﬂiimt on initial reeognition is classified in ‘Srage 1" and has its credit sk continuousty monitored by the Company ie,
the default in cepayment is within the range of U to 30 days,

If a significant increase m eredit nisk (SICRY since inital recognition is Wentified, the financial instrument is moved to “Stage 2 but is not vet deemed w be eredic
Em[mlll'cd i, the defuult in fepayrment 15 wiathin the range of 31 to @0 L]l'l}li.
If the financial instrument # creditimpaired, the fnancial nstrument is then moved to ‘Sage 3 ie. the default in repayment is mare than %0 days.

The Bxpected Credit Loss (ECL) i measured at 12-month BCL for Stage 1 foan assets and at lifetime BCL for Stage 2 and Stage 3 loan assets, FCL i the
product of the Probabiity of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given Defaulc

/



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Nates to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
{All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unloss stated atherwisg)

As 2 pat of o qualitative assessment of whether 1 customer is in default, the Campany also considers a variety of instanees that may indicate unlikeliness t© pay.
When such events occur, the Ctlmpﬂ.ﬂy earefully considers whether the event should sesult in treating the customer as diefaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3

for 1iCL caleulations or whether Stage 2 & appropriate. Such events include:
(i) The bomower is deceased

(i) A marerial decrease in the underdying eollateral value where the reeovery of the loan is expected from the sale of the eolluenl

(1) A material decrease in the borrower’s tumover or the loss of 2 major customer

(1w} The borrower requesting emergency funding frem the Company

The Expected Credit Loss (HCL) is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan assets and ar lifetime FCL for Stige 2 and Stage 3 foan assets, ECL s the

product of the Probability of Delault, Exposure at Defaule and Loss Given Defaule,

Forsard-looking cconomic information (including management overday) s included in determining the 12-month and lifetime PD, BAD and LGD. The

assumptions underdying the expecied credit loss are monitored and reviewed on an anpoing basis.

Changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans from beginning to end of reporting period: .

Particulars Stage 1 (0-30 days) | Stage 2 (31-90 days) S"'g“.;- (;{“:: than
Gross earrying amount ns at March 31, 2023 21,259.10 527.41 916,50
Assets orymnated ar purchased 18357.37 104.74 94,38
Met eranafee between siapes
Teansfer o smge 1 8721 (36243 {51.01)
Teansfer tospge 2 {61297) 617.72 (. 73)
Transfer to stage 3 (342,00 (241.23) 783.32
Asgets derecognised or repaid (exeluding weile offs) (TTT94T) [260.57) WA
Write - offs - - (260.05)
Gross carrying amount a3 at March 31, 2024 30,765.54 TILET 137965
Asspis originated or purchayed 31,799.40 259.70 10200
Nut transfer bemween stages
Transier o stage | ALn3 [15.08) (24.94)
Treansfir 1o stage 2 {1,399.19) LE19.95 (20.76)
Transfer to smge 3 {1,707.75) {458.73) 216647
Assers dececogised o sepaid (cxcleding write o(Ts) {11,483.64) {50144y (219.05)
Wiite - affs (663,530
Gross carrying smount as at March 31, 2025 47,818.99 1,615.67 2,719.23
Reconciliation of loss allewance provision from heginning to end of reporting period:
Reconcilistion of loss allowance Stage 1(0-30 days) |Seage 2 (31-90 days) 5‘“!‘.“;—; %"::;; than
Loss allowance on March 31, 2023 50,32 119,48 406,55
Inerense of provision due to ascts originated or purchased durg the period 2401 1845 HH
Net transfes bepvesn stages - .
Translir o stage 1 3113 (R2T) (2255
Teansfee vo smge 2 4,78 80 (210
Teansfer to siage 3 {401y (B7.02 Gl.6d
Lmpact of BCL on exposures irnsferred between stages during the year (40.29) il 18045
Asnets desecognised or eollectod (1513 (23.56) {165.30)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2024 41.25 125.61 S0L97
Inceease of provision due to assets oegnated 'or purchased during the pedod 34,87 42.93 36,74
Met transfer bebween stapes
‘Tranafer o g | . 1154 277 LeE ]
“Trangfie to stage 2 (214 070 {7.55)
“Tramsfer to sage 3 (229 [80,94] 83.23
Impact of ECL on exposures ransferred berween suayes during te year 836 20316 691,70
Assen derecognised or collecsed {600} (12.61] (33411
Lass allowance on March 31, 2025 85.89 - 285,08 962.97

*Note: The management is maintaining overdlays of approx, Rs.3.40 cron to address future contingencies & uncertaing, macrocconemic fctor affecting
small ticker size business loans ete,

B) l.iquidil.y risk

Liguidity risk is the tisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations asseciated with its fnancial liabilities that are settded by delivering
cash or ancthee financial asset. "The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as Far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mect its
liabilitics when they are due,

The Company mainmins felxibility in funding by maintining availability under committed eredit lines, Management monitnrs the Company's liquidity positions
(alse compriging the undrawn bormwing faclities) and eash and eash equivalents on the basis of expected cash Aows, The Company also takes inte account
liguidity of the market in which the entity opesates. .

Fin:m-:ing armngements

The Company has access to the fillowing undeawn boreowing Gellities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars Taotal facility Dirawn Undrawn

Mauch 31, 2025 -

- Bxpining beyond one year : 100 (T

- Expiang withm ong year = =

Total 100 - 100

March 31, 2024

= lixpirjng;.’huzuq;;l one year 3,000 - EALLY

- J pivibg wikhif e vear 1,100 &0 S0i1
Nl A\ 4,100 600 1,500




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

MNotes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Al amounts in 2 in kalchs, unless stated othenvise)

(ii)  Marurities of financial assets and liabilities
The tbles below analyse the Compuny finoneinl assers and liabilities inte relevant maturity peowpings based on tlieir contemetual manmritics,
The amounts disclesed m the tble are the conteaceual undiseounted cash lows .

As ar March 31, 2025 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Finaneial assers
Cash and Cash egunalents A G,007.85 - - G017 85
'Bank balanees other than cash and cash equivalenis 1,715.81 1012840 136,65 = 2,851.27
Receivalles 1772 - - - 17.72
Loans 30,540.26 2446340 12,311.35 2,037.00 6934210
Other financil assets 1,171.16 1.75 1.69 1292 1,147.52
Total undiscounted financial asseis 39.452.80 25494.04 12,449.59 2,040,02 79,436.45
Finanecial iabilities .
Debr seeurities 2 848.85 1T - - 10,220.02
Bozeowings (other than debt securities but ineluding interest acenued) 21,752.96 1441290 335070 4.68 30,611.24
Payables 243,11 . ; . 243.11
Othes Franeiil habihtcs 301,14 s . * 301,14
Total undiscounted finusncial labilities 25,146.06 21,784.07 3,350,70 04.68 50,375.51
Net undiscounted finuncial assets / (liabilitics) 14,306.75 3,709.97 9.098.89 1,945.34 29,060.95
As at
March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2.3 year More than 3 years Tatal
Financiul asscis
Cash and Cash equivalents 5485.80 - - - 548586
'Bank bulances ather than eash and eash equivalents 187202 233166 s 14401 4.34K,59
Recenalbles 337.64 - - - 35704
.| Loans 1886600 T2 24 Ha495.30 205054 4424314
Other fnancial asscts 896.35 - - - 890.35
Total undiscounted financial assets 27,457.92 17,173.01 849530 2,184.45 5531157
Financial liabilities
el sucuritios 200,35 200096 " - 229132
Borrowings (other than debt securities but including interest scerued) 13462.61 Y6435 3,741.74 i ] a7;081,62
Payabiles 127.06 - . - 127.06
Other financial liabilines 245,12 - . . 243.12
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 14,033.14 11,955,51 3,741.74 21272 ©29.943.12
Net undiscounted financial assets / (liabilities) 13,424.78 5,218.40 4,753.56 197172 25,368.45

C) '"Marker risk

a)  Interest rate risk

i) Liabilitics
The Company’s policy i to minimise interest tie cash Pow sisk exposures on long-tevm finaneing, At March 31, 2025, the Company is exposed 1o changes in macket interest etes
thrapgh bank borrowings at vasable inserest mtes. The Company's investments in fxed deposics 1l pay fised intorest mtes.

Antercse rase sk exposure
Bebow i the ovemll expasire of the Campany to interest pbe risk:
As at it
Particukirs Matrch 31, 2025 Mmfm. 2024
Variable rate liabilities
Borrowings other than delst securities B511.74 L0776
Fized rate linbilitics
13ebt Securitics TA71.07 195213
Barrowings ather than dehr securities 27,625.51 1323310
Total 43,508.43 25,192.99 |
Sensftfvity

‘Sensitivity, of profit or ks in borcowing having fixed interesr rates, s nor applicable,

ii)  Assews
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fized rate deposits. They are therelore not sulject o inrerest eate sk as defined in Tod AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount noe the futite ensh fows will Muctmee becaise of 7 change in marke interest mes,

Mote 41: Capital Management
The Company’s capial mansgsesment abjectves are t ensire fhe Company’s alaity 1w contnue as 3 going coneesn, to comply with externally imposed eapital eoyuirement and
i steong eredit mimgs and to provide an adequate sem o shaseholders.

The Company menitors capital on the basis of the caerying ameunt of squity less cash and cash equivalenss as presented oo the face of balanee shect

Management assesses the Company's capital requisements in order to mainmin an efficient avernll fuaneing strcture while avoiding excessive leverge. This mkes into account the
subordination levels of the Company's vasious elsses of debe. The Company manages the eapital stracture and makes adpestovars it in the kgl of changes m economic conditons
and the risk chanieteristics of the undeelying assets. In ordee to maintin or adjust the capitl strecmee, the Company may adjuse the amount of dividends paid 10 shavcholders, st
eapital to shareholders, sssue new shires, or sell assets to reduce debe ]

Particulars ; March 30, 2025 | March 31, 2024 ;
Barrowings (othee than debt securities) 4 AB5.4G 13,439.3%

Dbt Securities B.974.09 1.952.13

Less; Cash and Cash Equivilents (6/07.85) (5 4B5.86)

Mot debr* 37,851.70 19,025.66

Equery Share Capiral 15,755,79 15.755.79

Orhir Faopnry 326895 253335

Total equity 19,024.74 18,279.05

Net debt to equity ratio /Gearing ratip L99 L0

* Netdgbe includes debt securitics + borowing other than delt seeurities + sub-ordinated linblities + intesest acerued - cash and cash equivalonts - bank balances other than cash &
cash equivalents! non lien macked).



SATIN FINSERV LIMITED

Nates to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2025

(Al amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Note 42: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assers and abilides analysed according to when they are expeeted 1o be recovered or serded.

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within | More than Total Within | More than Total
12 months | 12 months 12 months | 12 months ¥
ASSETS
Financial asscts
Cash and cash equivalents (L TN - 005,84 548580 5ARS.RA
Bank balances other than eash and cash cquivalents 1,592.84 1,100.16 2,692.99 547.88 3,371.81 3,959.69
Receivables 17.53 0,19 17.72 33764 & 337.64
Loans 2163882 | 2018113 | 50.819.95 | 1250124 | 2557708 | 3787832
Oither financial assets 1,187.52 - 1,187.52 806.35 - §96.35
30,442.55 30,281.47 | 60,724.02 19,808.97 | 28,748.89 | 48,557.85
Non Financial assets
Current tax assets (net) - 1,096.52 1,096.52 - 923.73 923.73
Defeered tax assets (net) . 937.09 037.09 - 1,000,99 1.090.9%
Property, plant and equipment 75.59 526.83 G241 57.50 27448 331,98
Oither ;n[:'ln‘-._;ibk‘ assels 5.38 5.38 236 2346
Capital WIP - - - 9.21 - 921
Other non [nancial assets 529,78 - 829.78 575.09 - 575.08
90537 | 2.565.81 | 347118 64416 | 228920 | 293336
TOTAL ASSETS 31,347.92 | 32,847.28 64,195.20 20,453.13 31,038.00 51,491.22
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Trade Payahles
total outstanding dues of MSMEs 4317 - 43.17 13.78 - 13,78
total outstanding dues of ereditors uther than MSMEs 199.94 - 199.94 113,28 - 113.28
Dielst securities 2,006.94 6,967.15 8,974.09 - 1,952,13 1,952.13
Borrowings (other than debe securities) 21,752.06 | 13,132.50 | 34,885.406 9,640.38 13,8190 33,459,530
Orther financial linbilities 301.14 - 301.14 243.12 = 24512
24.304.15 | 20,099.65 | 44,403.80 | 10,010.56 | 1577114 | 25,781,70
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 539.47 121.14 660,61 20,60 1,606.56 1,656.22
Other non financial liabiliries 106.05 - 106,05 108.15 - 108.15
645.52 121.14 766.66 137.81 1,606.56 1,744.37
TOTAL Liabilitics 24,949.67 | 20,220.79 | 4517046 | 10,048.37 | 17,377.70 | 27,526.07
Net 6,398.25 12,626.49 19,024.74 10,304.76 13,660.39 23,965.15
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SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Motes to the financial statcments for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounes in 2 in Iakhs, unless stued otheowise)

Note

43: Corporate Social Responsibility

s per Seciion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meciing the applicabiliyy threshold, needs to spend ar-least 2% of its avesage net profic foe the inumediately preceding thiee
financil years on corporire social responsibility (CSRY netvities, The sasd scerion is applicable on the company, however, considesny average profit for bt 3 years, amount required 10 be

spent under CSR is nil

1. Gross amaunt requived 1o be spent by the company dusing the year i Nil and peevious year is Nil .
I Ammowit spent durimg the year on:

For the period ended March 31, 2025

For the period ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Paid Vet to be paid Total

Paid

Toral

1. Conatruetion, acomsioon of an asser 2 -

Yet 1o be paid

2. O purpose athers thao (1) above -

MNote 44: Semment Rl:pnning

The Company eperates in a single repartable segment i.e. finencing nctivity, which has similae risks and retuens for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Opermsing segments”™ and is considered to
be the only reporable business segment. The Company derives itx major revenues fom Braneing aetivitics and its customers are widespread. Pusther, the Company is aperating in India

whech is considered as a smgle grogmphicnl segment,

Nate 45: Additional disclnsures as required by the Reserve Bank of India

()

(ii)

(i)

(iv

=

=

{vi

(i)

(i)

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

Particulars As at As at
Marcl 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

CIRAR (%) 37,62 4800

CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 37.62 4800

CRAR - Tier 11 Capital (%) . a

Liguichity Coverage Rato 202 2194

Aot of subondinated debe rused as Tee-11 capizal - -

Amonnr sised by ssaie of Perperial Debr Instroments *

Partculars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Value of Investments

Giross Value of Investments

() In India

(b} Chutsicde Irdiz,

Provisions for Depreeiation

i) Tes India *

() Ouiside Indin,

Mer Value of Invegtments

() In India

{5 . Ourside Indim, 5, ¥

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investmenis

@ Opening balince =

() 5 Add : Provisions made during the year

(i) less : Weite-olf / write-back of excess provisions during the year -

3] Closing balance x

Derivatives:-

The Company has no tansactions/ exposute in derivatives in the cutrent pericd sad previous period,

Details of assignment transactions undertaken:-
The Company has no tnsactions/ exposyre m assigniment tetnsactions in the cursent period and previcns periad,
Details of financial asset sold to Securitisation / R ion Company for asset reconstruction:-:-

The Company s not sald financial assers to Securitisation / Reconstmaction Companies fov asset reconstruetion in the curene period ned proviows penod,

Deils of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold:-
The Company has not purchased/seld non-pesforming financial asset i the eusrent period and provious period.

Exposure to real estate secton-
The Company has no exposure i real estate secrar during the curent perod and previous period.

Exposure to capital marker:-
The Company has no expesure (o capital market during the casrent pesiod and previous pedod,




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the peried caded March 31, 2025
(AN s in T in bikhs, unless stated otherwieg

46 'There is no cases of trnsacrions with the comanies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2113 o seetion 560 of Companics Act, 1956, \

47 Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Portieular Questanding for following periods from due dae of ment - Mareh 31' 2025
: Mot due Less than 6 months (6 hs - Eyear  |1-2 years . 12-3 vears Maore than 3 years | Towl
1230 5.2% .10 = o N

(i) Undisputed Trade Recotvables = which have significant increase in
credit sk A
i} Unclispured Tede Receivables — eradit impsired

i) Dispured Trade Regetvables— eonsddered pood
(¥} Diputed Trade Recoivables — which huve significant increase in
credit sk
(i) Dieputed Tride Receivabes — eredit imspaired

Trade Receivables ngeing schedule
Parsculnrs Duistanding for following periods from due date of poyment- Mareh 31° 2024 |
Mot due Less than 6 months |6 months - 1 year [1-2 years 2-3 years Meore than 3 years | Toral
(i) Undispaired Trnde receivables — considersd pood - 32088 217 11.13 147 3 33764
(i) Undisputed ‘Trade Receivables —which have simificant increase in
credir risk

(af] Undispured Trade Receivables - eredit impaired
(i) Diispured Trdle Receivables— considerad pond
(¥) Diputed Teade Receivablos —which have sgnificant ingrease in
ceedie risk

(o) Dasputed Trnde Recervables — eredit impaired

474 Unbilled revenne ageing schedule

Particulass Ouisranding for following periods from due date of payment- Marel 31 2024
Mot due |Lews than 6 monthe [ months - 1vear  |1-2 years [2.3 veass [More than 3 vears | Toual
(i) Undispuned Linbilled reveroe — considered good s | 1.58 B | - | 2 | z 158

Unbilled revenue ageing schedule

Farboilars 18] dimg for following periods from duc date of pavment=- March 31" 2023
Mot due ILﬂE than 6 months |6 hs - 1 vear |13 vears |2-3 Vs JMolc than 3 years | Toal
i Undispured Unbsilled pevenue — congidered mond = 12T | = = | 12104

48 Additional information pursuant to Minisury of Corporate Affairs notification dated March 24, 2021 with respect to amendments in Schedule 11 of Companies Acy, 2013
(i) "Thenzane no proccedings which have been initisted or pending agninst the company for helding any benami provperty under the Benami Transactiony (Pralibitos) Ac, 1988 (45 of 1988) amd, cules mnde
thereunder, i
(iiy “The company 3 novawilful defaulier = deckared by any bank or Grancial Institution or any other lender.
here are no chorpees oc satisfiction yet to be:regitered with Registrar nfiiompmias'm(][u Ieyond Hie stutatory period.
tiv) The company has complied with the nuenbier of layers preserbed under eluse (87) of sction 2 of the Act read with Companics (Restrction on numler of Layers) Rules, 2017,
{w) There are no nansactions which are not recorded in the books of aceounts that has been surrendered ar disclosed s inenme duning the pear in the o mssessments undir the Tncome Tax Acr, 1961 fsuch
a, search o survey or iy other relevant provisions of the Tneome Tax Act, 1961,
(vi) ‘Ihe Company has not teaded or invested in Ceypra eurrency ot Vil Curcency duritig the yeae,

Druring the year, s funds (which wre mareral vither inclividully or in the sggregate) have been advaneed of loaned ar invested {either from bormwed funds or shire premium or any other sowrces or kind of funds) by
the Compuny o of in any other persoa or en taty, inchudling foreign ety (" Intermediaries), with the undéestanding, whether reoocded in writing or otherwise, thar the lnrermediany shall, whether, dircetly oe ndirocdy
lend e invest in other peesens or endties idennified in any manner whistsoever by or on behalf of the Company {*Ultimate Deneficiries™) or provede any guamntee, secenty or the like o behalf of the Ultiman:

{¥il] Beneficiries,
Bluring the vear, no funds fwhich are maresial ather individually or in the sggregare) have been received by the Company from any persan or entiiy, inchuding forcken entity (* Funding Parties™), with the
undutstanding, whether recorded insweiting oo othenaise, that the Compary shall, whether, dircedy or indireetly, lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner shasoever by or on

(i) behalf of dhe Funding Mty (“Ultimate Beneficarics™ or provide any guamnsee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Bonefiiaries,

49 Previous year Figures have been resgrouped fro-clissified wherover necessary o make it comparable with the fgure presented for the year ended Mt March 2025,

“The aceompanying notes are s integeal part of the nancial statemant,
As per our teview repoct of even daie attched

For Rajeey Bhatix & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ,,7
Chartered Accountants Satin Finsery Limited
firm's Registmtion Na,: 021776N

p Kumar Mehis
TN: (HIB40544
Diirectar

Plice : Gurugram

q....P %

Sangm Jaiswal '" .
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SATI

N FINSERV LIMITED

Notes to the financial statemcnts for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounes in ¥ i dakbs, unless stueed otheewise)

(ix)

Disclosure relating to securitization:-

The Company bas entered o agroement for the seeuntization of Jeans with assymees, wherein it has seeuritized 1 pare of its loans poefolio umownting to TNR
1233852 lakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024; INR 4,250,71 lakhs Js being the prinepal value oustinding as on the ddte of the deals thar are
outstanding. The Company 15 responsible for collection and servicing of this fuan portlelio on bebalf of mvestong buyers. In terms of the sid secoritiation agrrements,
the Company pays w0 investor/buyers on agreed datw Tasis il promm collection amousnt as pee individual agreement reoms,

For the period | For the period
Partculurs cnded March 31, |ended March 31,
2025 2024
L No of SI'Es holding assets [or securitsation trnsactions onginated by the onginaror b 4]
2. Toml amount of securtined assers as per books of the SPEs 1742138 5,062 84/
3 Towl amount of exposiees retined by the ongnatoe 1o comply with MRR s on the date of balnce sheer 1,726.70 519.72
1) OFF Balance sheet exposures 3 i
" First Ioss = =
= Others u .
b) On Balanee sheet exposures - -
* First loss 1.726.70) F19.72
* Qihers E =
4 Ansount of exposures to secunization tansactions other than MR Y3255 261.98
) Off Balanee sheer exposures %
1 Exposure 1o own securntsations
* Farst loss
* Otlsery =
1) Expesuee 1o thied party secur e tions
¥ st logs -
* Otlwers
1) On Balance sheet exposutes B -
t Exposice to own securittztons 3 a
* st loss 932.55) 260,98
* Othices M e
i} Exposare to thivd party secuntensons .
st loss -
* Olvprs . -
5 Sale conswlemnion received For the securitized assets and pinfInss on sale on pccount of secumstizanon 15,557, 52 4, 488,50
6 Foem and quantum (oustanding value) of serviees provided by wiy of, liquidity support, post-securitiztion asset scnacing, et
7 Pecformance of lality provided. Please provide sepamtely for each fcility Sz Credit enbancensnt, Tiquadity support, =
seevicmy agent ete. Mention percent in bracket as of totl value of fnciliey provided -
(2} Amount pad - -
(b} Repayment received -
() Crutstanding amenme 2,659.25 THOLTO
& Avemge defilt rate of portfolios obseeved in the pase Please provide brealup - -
sepamiely for each asser elags 1o RMBS, Vehicle Loans cic -
9 Amount an number of additonal/ top up loan piven on same underdying assc g =
Please provide breakup sepacately for each asset chss 1.e. RMES, Vehicle Loans ele - -
10 Investor complints (1) Diveetly/Indirectly received and; (b) Complunis B -
outstnding 4 -
(x) Information on instances of frand:-
Mature of fraud (cash embezzl t by employec) For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of Cises : 1
Amotint of Feaod - 1.76
Recovery -
Amount written off - 176

Nature of fraud (Borrower)

For the year ended

For the year ended

(i)
(i)
(i)
{xiv)

().

March 31, 2025 Moarch 31, 2024
Numiber of Cises 1
Arnsunt of Fraud a 17542
Recovery 3
Amouns written off - 175.12

Details of single borrower limit exceeded by applicable NBFCi-

Vhe Compuny dees not have single Boreower excecding the limits during the cusreat period snd previous peaod,

Details of financing of parent Company product:-

"The Company docs not bave such transaerion during the curent period and previous pesiod.

Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:-

The Compauy is registered with the ‘Ministry of Corporate Affains” (Financial segubeors as deseribed by Ministry of Finance),

Disclosure of Penalties imposced by RBI & other regulators:-

Mo penaltes imposed by RB1 and other regulators dunng the current pecisd and peevious pedod.

Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Purticulars As at March 31, 2025 gt ;:;;ch L

Concentration of Advances

Toml advanees to owenty lagpest bosowers 4,093.37 3.989.81

(%) of advances o rventy lrgest boreowers o (ol advances 7.85% L2 14%

Concentration of Exposures

Total exposune to nwventy lrgest borrowers 403,37 3,089.81

(%) of exposure 1o twenty Brpest bormowers o total exposure 7.85% 12.14%

Concentration of NPAs

Toml exposure to top four NPA accounts 53.02 3270
Vo) of exposure t 1op four NIPA accounts 0,108 L 040

1]

f




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakhs, unless stared otherwise)

(xvi) Movement of NPAs:-

(=vit)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March
2025 31, 2024
i) Met NPAs to net advance (%) 3.71% 3.26%
ii) Movement of NIPAs m T085)
) Opening balance 1,597.38 1,044.62
b) Addition during the year 2337.14 967,30
€) Reduction/ weite off dunng the year {928.90) (#14.54)
d) Closing balance 2,905,062 1,597.38
i) Movement of NPAs (Neg)
a) Opening balanee 1,050.99 f5.65
b} Addition during the year 1,411.51 669.56
c) Reduction/ wiate off during the year (578.17) (224.23)
) Closing balance 1,884.32 1,050.99
E\'} Moverment af prrrvisi[n::i for NPAs (l,:!:cluding pmvhiions
on standard assers)
1} Opening balance 546,40 438.97
by Addition during the year 825.62 297.74
¢} Reduetion/ write off during the year (350.73) (190.32)
dy Closing balance 1,021.29 54641

Unsecured advances = refer note 7 of Balince Sheet Notes

(xviii) Provisions & contingencies {shown under Bxpenses head in statement of profit & loss)

(xix)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March 31, |ended March

2025 31, 2024
Provision for standard and non pecforming nssets 665.10) 9215
Provision for geatuity 25.97 (37.55)
Prowvision for compensaton absences {0.04) (20.43)
Other Provisions (1,001.54) 166.63

Un-hedged foreign currency

The Company does net have iny foreign curnmey transaction dunng the current and previous period.

(xx) Intra-group exposures:-
For the year For the year  |For the For the vear
ended March 31, |ended March |year ended [ended
Particulars 2025 (Customer) |31, 2024 March 31, [March 31,
(Customer}  [2025 2024
(Borrower) ((Borrower)
a) Total amount of intu-group cxposures 000 (.00 0.00 (.00
b) Tetal amount of top 20 imtea-group exposurcs 000 (L0 (.00 (L00
€) Percentage of intr-group exposures to toral exposure of
the Company on borowers/ customesns QLO00% 0% D.00%: 0.00%
Disclosure of stress assets as required under notification issued by REI dated Auguse 06, 2020, RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC,/3,/21.04.048/2020-21
(i) with notification issued by RBI dated and May 05, 2021, RBI/2021-22/31 DOR.STR.REC. 11/21.04.048/2021-22 (INR in Lakhs)
)
Type of (A) (B) (C) (D) (E}
borrower | Exposure to accounts Of (A), ageregate debe Of (A) amount Of (A) amount paid Exposure to
classified as Standard that slipped into NPA written off during by the borrowers accounts classified
consequent to during the half-year the halfeyear during the half-year as Standard
implementation of con t o
resclution plan — Position implementation of
as at the end of the resolution plan
previous half-year (A) ~Position as at the
end of this half-year
Personal i i '
Loang il
Corporats _ A i
persoms®
O wiiet, 4 " L H ;
MAIME:
Others - Hatie
MISMI: 338.52 722 - 28.54
Taotal 338.52 7.22 . 28.54

*As defined in Section 3(T) of the Insolvency and Bankruprey Code, 2016.
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SATIN FINSERYV LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ in lakbs, unless stated otherwise)

(xxiv) Breaclies in terms of covenants in respect of loans availed by the NBFC or debt sceurities issued by the NBFC including incidence/s of default.:-
There s no breach in reems of covenant in edspect of loans availed or delit securitios issue by the Company:as on March 31,2025,

(xxv) Divergence in asset classification and provisioning above a certuin threshold to be decided by the Reserve Bank:-
“There iseny fivergence in awet chissificdlion ad proviionisg o be reported as pee RBI guidelines.

(xxvi) Sectoral Exposure:-

For the vear ended March 31, 2025 For the vear ended March 31, 2024
Tatal Toral
Exposure Percenuge Exposure Percentage
(includes of Gross (includes of Gross
Skt on balance Groes NPAsz 1o on balunee Gross NPAs o
sheet and NPAs ozl sheetand NPAs total
ofl-balince cxpostre in ofl-balance exposure in
sheet that sector sheet dheate sector
cxphsure) exposare)
Agriculiure and allied activitics 6.728.80 §08.00 1211% 6,708,004 556,53 £22%
MSME 0,696.41 46H.29 G0 3.775.50 473,59 12.54%
Services M.337.75 1,599.00 LB 1783022 49697 27%
Corporate borrowers 412932 - [{TTi 419708 [EE]] (00
Others 261.61 30.23 LAY : 20016 7029 24.33%
Total 52,153.89 2,905.62 5.57% 3286106 1,597.36 4.86%
{eovii) Customer conplaints:-
For the year ended |For the year ended
Pacticulars Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

) Mutuber of eamphints pending at the bepiening of the year|

b} Mumber of comphing roceseerd during the year 114] 52
) Number of comphunts disposed dusing the year 27 52
d} OF which, aumber of complin rojecied by the company =

d Number of complaint pending at the cnd of the year (11)

Top five grounds of complaiuts received by the Company from customer

Grounds of complaims,
(ie. complaints relating o) fogp oo of complaints Number of :“nc““,e f‘a :
pending at the complaines |°*7HC A Number of complaints |Of 5, number of
beginning of received i .. (pending at the end of [complaints pending
ihe year during th CPAMETS Yoasivisd the year beyond 30 days
¥ l.':.ng S lover the previous oF o ¥
Fc }'C“If
1 2 3 4 5 i

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Complaint w.rt terms of lan
dhishursenien! - 11 -389%

Criher Complaings - 14 0% - ¥

For the yvear ended March 31, 2024

Complant/ enguinics w.r.

teems of loan aprecment 11 S0 . =
Othes Complants - - (% . -

(weovii) Rating assigned by credit rating agencics and migrdon of mtings during the year-
During the year, the Company's various instaments were maed, the demils of these mtiags ave 15 unden-

Credit rating

3. Mo. Particulars Amount i ¥ "
agency Current rating Previous rating
1 Long-teem fundl-based bank fbelities B0.00 [ICRA Limired ICRA A- (Salsle) 1GRA A- (Smble)
2 Non Convertible Debentuns .00 JICRA Limired ICRA A- (Smbile) IGCRA A- (Sabl)
3 Mo Convertible Debentuncs G000 JICRA Limited ICEA A- (Sable) NA
Seeuritization (Ninibus) ; ACUITE A- S0)
4 - A0 [ Acuite Ragings Ll |ReaffGemed AGUITE A~ (43

Securitization {Admieal) CMU:"- A- {5080
3 i 589 |CARE Ratngs Led  |Reaffiemed CARE A- 500

CARE BRI (80

Secuntizanon (iguity Tranche)-Admirl

& 048 |CARE Ratings Lid | Realfirmed CARE BBI3 (SO)
Securitiention ([insus) e s ]{:!L:'\ AHE0) :

7 310 [ICHA Limived Reaffirmed [ICRAA+{S0)
Secusitbation (Bauity Treanche)- Ensat o ICRABEE+ 50

il 048 [ICHA Limited Reaffimed [JCIABBI+{R0
T ICRA A (50)
5 y

9 BRI SRR 11,78 |ICRA Limited Reaffirmed [CRAJA (50

11 Securitization (Buiterfly) 16.90 |TCRA Limited ICRA AA- (50 NA

11 Securitisation {Butteefly) 168 [ICILA Limited IGRA A+ 50 N

12 Securitization (Hluesuek) 25,90 |ICRA Limited ICIRA A (S0) NA

13 Securimeation (Yoda ) 3324 [1CRA Limired ICIA A (8O0 NA
Secuvitization (Equity Tranche)- Yoda ][Zﬂ.:-\ BEB* (503

14 ! 185 ICKA Linited Reaffiencd NA

15 Secutitizaion {Lunify) 3269 [ICHA Limited TCRA A (500 N

J Securitsation (Bquicy Teancheh-Lunily TCRA BBB+ (300
\ 16 1.82 [ICRA Limited Ttealfirmod NA

*Mote: The putstanding amount is updated as per the cealfrmed ming




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Notes 1o the luancial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(AT amaungs i 3 in lakhs, unless siuted oflerwise)

{xxix} Schedule to Balance Shoet

Particulars : Asan Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Araonnt Ouistinding Amount Overdie

Liahilities Side
1} Loans and advances availed by the NBFC inclusive of interest acerued thereon but not paid:

{a} Debearuses : Secueed ; #,974.00 -
t Unsecured - -

(esther than falling withus the meaning of public depasin®

{B) Deferred Credies

{e) Termn Loans 353

i) nter-coeponte loas and borowing -

() Commercinl Paper

() Public Depasics

Mrhcr Loans {Cash Creclity = =

2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):

() [ the form of Unsecurcd debenturss

(b} In the form of partly secured debentures Le. debennives where there @8 a shortfall in the value of security

{e) Other public deposirs i
Asset Side ! Amoun: Ouistanding

3} Breuk=up of Loans and Advanees including bills receivables [other than those included in (4) below]:
(a) Secured ¥

) Unsccured 300043
4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities

LA RRET]

(1) Leage assers meluding lease ventals under sundry debiors
(i} Funancml lease
(i) Opeeating lease

() Seock on hire including hire charges undee sundey debtors
(i) Assets on hime
(1) Repossessed Assets

() Orther loans counting towseds asset fmancing activitics
(i) Loans where assets have been repossessed
{1} Lommas other than (2) abive

3} Break-up of Investments

Catrrent Invesimenis
1) Chuoted
i} Shares
() Eepatey
() Preference i
i) Debentures and Bonds “
i) Unnees of mumual fmds
) Government Sceunities
v) Others
by Unguaoted
1) Fhares

() Eaquity

(b} Preference
i) Debenmees and Bosds
i) Unidts of mual funds
w) Government Seouritics
o) Orhiers
Long Teem invesiments
a) Chuered
i) Shares

() Lquuey

(&) Preference
) Debenuees sl Bords °
1) Unies of musnl funds
w) Government Securibes
v} Crehers ~
b Ungueted 5
1} Sheares *
) Eequity .
(b) Prefesence
11y Debentures and Bonds
id1) Units of rutal ooy
) Government Securities
v} Others

6) Borrower group-wize classification of assets financed a5 in (3) and (4) above:

Category Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Toral

1) Relared Parties

{#) Subsicliarics

H) Companiés in the same group
(e) Other relared partics

2) Onher than relared parties - :
e <EER




SATIN FINSERV LIMITED
Motes 1o the financial stawements for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts in 2 in lakhs, unless stated othenwise)

7) Investor group-wise clagsification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securites (both
quoted and unquoted) :

Market Value / Break]
Category 'up or fair value or
NAV

Book Valne (Mei of|
Provisions)

1) Related Pasties

(a) Subsidiaries i
() Compantes in the same group
() Other relaned parties

2} Other than velnted parties

&) Other information
Puarticulars Amount
i} Gross Non-Performing Assers 2,905.62
() Related parties
{B) Cther than reluted partios 2,905,62
(i) Nee Non-Peeforming Asscs 1,884.53
(a) Related parves
1,884.33

(i) Orher than related parties

(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt




